AGENDA FOR THE COUNCIL MEETING OF THE BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES
HELD AT THE BOROUGH HALL, 400 BOULEVARD, MOUNTAIN LAKES, NJ, 07046
OCTOBER 9, 2017
PUBLIC SESSION BEGINS AT 8:00 PM

1) CALL TO ORDER AND OPEN PUBLIC MEETINGS ACT STATEMENT - Mayor
This meeting is being held in compliance with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act, P.L. 1975, Ch. 231. It
was properly noticed and has been posted, and certified by the Clerk. Notice of this meeting has been sent to The
Citizen, the Morris County Daily Record and The Star Ledger and posted on the bulletin board in the municipal
building.

2) ROLL CALL ATTENDANCE - Clerk
3) FLAG SALUTE - Mayor

4) EXECUTIVE CLOSED SESSION
R-155-17 Resolution providing for a meeting not open to the public in accordance with the provisions of the new
Jersey Open Public Meetings Act, N.J.S.A. 10:4-12
Matters of contract negotiations: Lease of Borough property, Request to purchase Borough property.

5) COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS
6) SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS

7) REPORTS OF BOROUGH ESTABLISHED BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES
a) Report from the Planning Board Sign Committee regarding revising the sign ordinance

8) PUBLIC COMMENT
Please state your name and address for the record. Each speaker is limited to one (1) comment of no more than
five (5) minutes and no yielding of time to another person.

9) BOROUGH COUNCIL DISCUSSION ITEMS

10) ATTORNEY’S REPORT

11) MANAGER’S REPORT
a) Best Practices

12) ORDINANCES
a) Introduction

1. None
b) Adoption
1. None

13) *CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
Matters listed as Consent Agenda Items are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion of the Council and
one roll call vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councif member requests an item be
removed for consideration.

14) *RESOLUTIONS
1. R156-17, Authorization for the payment of bills

2. R157-17, Award contract for leasing of police vehicles

1



AGENDA FOR THE COUNCIL MEETING OF THE BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES
HELD AT THE BOROUGH HALL, 400 BOULEVARD, MOUNTAIN LAKES, NJ, 07046
OCTOBER 9, 2017
PUBLIC SESSION BEGINS AT 8:00 PM

3. R158-17, Reaffirming the Borough’s commitment to sustainable land use
4. R159-17, Approval of treatment works approval application for Kings Mountain LLC

15) *APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Regular minutes
September 25, 2017, (All eligible)

16) *APPROVAL OF REPORTS FOR FILING (reports are included only if checked)
D Construction Department
|:| Department of Public Works
D Fire Department
E] Health Department
D Police Department
|:| Recreation Department
D Code Enforcement/Property maintenance report

17) *BOARD, COMMITTEE AND COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS
Elizabeth Myatt to the Woodlands Committee
Robert Aiello to the Communications Advisory Committee

18) COUNCIL REPORTS

19) PUBLIC COMMENT
Please state your name and address for the record. Each speaker is limited to one (1) comment of no more than
five (5) minutes and no yielding of time to another person.

20) NEXT STEPS AND PRIORITIES

21) ADJOURNMENT



BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR & BOROUGH COUNCIL
SUBJECT: BEST PRACTICES WORKSHEET —-CY 2017
DATE: OCTOBER 5, 2017

ce; VALERIE EGAN — BOROUGH CLERK

MONICA GOSCICKI - CFO
ROBERT OOSTDYK - BOROUGH ATTORNEY

Summar

As required by law (PL 2017, ¢.99), the Division of Local Government Services transmits the
“Best Practices Worksheet” (BPW) to local government agencies. This memo will outline our
review of the Worksheet.

Facts

The response was a joint effort between the Borough Clerk, CFO and Manager. This year the
BPW was reduced from 30 questions to 25 with 21 needed to maintain State Aid. However, the
biggest change from prior years gives the Director of the Division absolute discretion with regard
to the responses and amount of Aid, if any, withheld.

In our responses, we have indicated “Yes” or “N/A” to 19 and 4 questions respectively or 92% in
the affirmative. Our only “No” responses relate to the filing of labor contracts with the Public
Employee Relations Commission (PERC) question #1 and Question #7 regarding review of
outside employment of current employees.

Conclusion _

Regardless of the issues we have with the process, this is an excellent way to self-examine a
town’s internal policies and procedures and as shown, Mountain Lakes does very well in this
regard. We could only hope the Division would consider establishing a standardized list of all
Best Practices in advance so we are all working in the same direction.

2 YD
Ri¢hard J. Sh¢ola  ~
Borough Manager

Attachments: Best Practices Worksheet
Local Finance Notice 2017-14



910z ‘ZT 12¢010 panoidde Adijod

‘wesdoud uonesjsuowsp

juawssasse AJuno) yynowuolp ay3 ui sazediped o (weiSoad jopid Jossasse

Aunod) Ajuno) 131599n0|9 ui st Apjedidiunw InoA Ji | /N, 1omsue AjuQ "d|qejiene
$32W023( uollewloUl se pauodal aq pjnoys sjeadde asoyl ‘T aunf Jo se d|ge|leaeun

S1 uol1ewW0jul @32]dwod Yo1ym Joj sjeadde aue 242yl J| "|nyssadons auam sjeadde ||e y1 an|ea
PBSSasSE Ul UOIIINPaJ Ay} PUB ‘anjeA passasse 1ualind ay) ‘sjeadde ujpuad jo Jaquinu ay)
ssej2 Aysadouid Aq umop yeauq 01 140dal s, J0ssasse ayl a4inbas ‘wnwiuiw e ‘pjnoys Adjjod
9yl ¢JeaA ydes 3ST oun( UByl Ja1e| ou Ing '8uljly uodn sjeadde Xe} [[e JO Apoq SuluJaA03
a1 pUE Ja01jj0 [EIDUBUIS JaIYD 9yl AJITOU 07 J0SS955€ Xe] S sulinbal Ad1jod uailim
paysi|qeisa Ue aAe( Ayjedpiun JnoA seoq -Suiuueld Asere3pnq J1syi ojul syuswaspnf
[eadde xe1 01 ainsodxa |eipuaiod 1030e) 03 AW} JUSIDIYNS sey Alljedidiunw ay3 1Y) 2INSuUd
0] 10s53sse xey [edidiunW Y3 Y3IM UOIIBIIUNWWOD 3q pinoys a1ayl "Aljiqels [easly ainsua
guidjay 01 |e3USWEPUNY S| 95eq 3]geled s Aljedidiunw e Jo Juawaseuew SULIOHUOW BAIDY

SaA

t10z pa1dope saijod [suuosiad

'sapdIyan paumo-Ajjeddiunw Aue aney jou saop Aljeddiunw

anoA 1 /N, 19msue Ajug ¢(Syl @yl Aq paiyioads era1iid ,3[91YyaA |euosiad-uou
paijijenb,, 9yl S193W S[DIYIA 33 SSB|UN) Z-M S,29A0|dwis 3yl uo paiodal awWodU| ss0J3
3y1 01 pappe an|eA }4auaq a8uLl) B SARY YJOM WOU}/0] SUIINWWOD 10} SIIIY3A YoNs asn
03 paziioyine saahojdwa eyl Suipiroad pue ‘(Sunnwiwod Jo) 3dadxa) s3J21YaA [edpiunww
J0 asn jeuossad Suniqiyoud Adjjod asn ajpiyan usnLm e pardope Aljedidiunw noA sey

SOA

*23n1els
Y11M 2oUBPIOIIE Ul P3JIJ 3 |[IM JORIIU0D MU YL
*£T0T ‘TE 19qwiazaq a41dxa s1aesjuod Joge| JnQ

¢DY3d Y3m S10e13U0D JuaLnd |[e pa)ly Aljedidiunw InoA seH

‘sn*furaelstaiad @s10e43U00 0} pajlewa aq Aew awes Jo saido) ‘syuawaaide Jeq apis,

10 ,J3113] 3pIs, pue ‘SjuaWpuae 10eJ1u0d ‘BulpUR]SISPUN JO BPUBIOWSW ‘SIUSWDISE
SujuieSieq aA1393](02 ‘01 PaIWI| J0U S| INg ‘SaPNIUI SIYL "saAleIUasaIdal aaAojdwa ot jgnd
YM pa1ennogau s3esiuod e jo Adod e (JY3d) uolssiwwo) suoneay Juswhiojdw algnd
3yl yum 3|13 03 ‘saiyjedpiunw Suipnjoul ‘susAojdwia a1jgnd saainbas 2'8-YET:vE V'STN

ON

SIUBWIWLO)

uonsany

1aMmsuy

S12MSUD U0 SHUI| J0f 322Ys fo wo110q 30 A3)] 10j0D 235 35D3|d

STPT

(s1a0lAl) ySnoaog sayeq ulelunojpn

STOZASS/LTOZ AD 193YS) 40/ S92k 1599



¢ S1ISIXD 1594931 JO 1D1|JU0D B 10U 10 JaYIaYyM BuIWIa)ap
0] UOI30UN} S32UN0S3J UeWNY s UIYHm ssaooad pajuswnoop e aaey Ajjediunw

InoA saop ‘@a130u yans Suialzdal uodn (z pue QuawAojdwa apIsino Jo 82130U HWgNs

01 speay Juawiiedap Suuinbai ssaoo.d pajuswniop paysijgeiss ue (T aaey Ayjedidiunw
JnoA ssoq "saueulaacg |edidiunw uo a8uldwi] 153J31ul JO SI211JU0D Ou eyl aAneladwl
s111 ‘ajge1dadde ag sawiawos ued sjeio [eddiunw Ag JuswAojdws apisino sjiym

ON

¢ 1A Jepul[Bd 9T0¢ 243 S19A0D 18] ZT0¢ Ul W04 2Inso[3siq [eloueul

11901 Pa[i} S|EID1}J0 Pa3aalo [00] JNOA JO [|B 9ABH -juepodwi Alienaijied si s[eidljo pelasle
|eso| Ag soueldwo) "SwJ04 24NSOISIJ |eIdUBULY 31} 0] 5132140 JuBWUIBA0S |BD0| Salinbal
“Quawutanos ul Adualedsuel) 2unsua 03 paudisap ‘MeT $21Ylg JUSWUIBA0D |BD0T 3YL

S9A

%0188 s! olley

¢S[BUOISS2]0Jd 10/pue swiily JUBA3|aJ JO ULy @43 10} 193pNn(g

S} Ul SpUn} pas)JEWJEs pue sdew xel Jo Suljepdn ay] J0jJ IDBJUO0D B papieme wnuwiuiw
1€ AjljedDiuntd JNoA Sey "945g Ueyl ssa] A[juasaid S| AlljedIDIUNW JNOA Ul San|eA 193Jew
0] Son|BA PasSasse JO ONeIaUl | #T'I-VZT:8T D'V N "UOllen|eAal Joj pasu e sajedlpul
pue sjuawWissasse Ul AjwJaojun Jo yoe| sa1ousp Ajjesauas 1usoiad §8 ueyl JaMo| Jo oney
540103110 V "T'SE-T:¥S V'S TN 0131uensind Ajjenuue pajeginwoud suoinenjep pazijenb3
JO 3|qe1 U3 Ul ‘UOIIEXE] JO UOISIAIQ 3Y1 4O 10123117 3yl Aq paulwaiap se Ayjedidiunw
yoea 10y (anjea 193JeW aNJ1 0] PISSISSE JO Ol1ed agesane ayl) ,01ey s,.40303.1a,, 2yl

&SUOISSILLIWIOD ||e pue luawisn(pe jo pJeoq ‘pleoq

Suiuued ‘Apoq 8ujuiano8 ayi Jo} sepuase pue sa1nuiw ‘sajep Sullesl pue isd4y pue spiq
10 UOI1B1ID1|0S 10} (S)UOIIRDI1I0U {S}PNE pUe JUSLWIS]E.]S [BIJUBUL [enuue Juadal Jsow (Apoq
Fuiuianod ayy Ag panoidde uaym 1ead Jusiind syl Joy 198png pardope ||y 8yl Sulpn|aui)
198pnq pasodoud s.Jeah juatind ayi (s1a8pnq paidope sieaA saiyl ised :Suimol|o) sy
winwiuiw 1e Suiuleluod aysgam [edpiunw a1ep-031-dn ue ulejuiew Ayjedidiunw anoA ssod

SaA

SjuUaWWo)

uonsanp

amsuy

SI2MSUD UO S)WI| J0f 123Ys fO WI0330q 10 A3)] 10jOD 335 I5P3|d

SZrt

(s1101A]) YySnodog so3jeq ulelunolpn

STOZA4S/LT0OZ AD 193YSHIOM SDI10kId 1599



iluawaaide

1071d Y2ea 40 swial 3y} yum aoueljdwod Sulinsua o) sseso.ad pajuawndop e aoe(d ul
aney (g pue “bas 12 T-TZ:VO¥ 'V'S'I'N 01 Juensind pajueld sjuswaleqy /suondwaxd Jeap
-aAl{ pue (-bas 12 T-07:voY V'S I'N) meT uondwax3 xe] wia]-8uo] ayl 03 uensind pajuesd
suondwaxa Jojiuow 01 pajeusisap |ely4o ue aney (T Aljedpiunw inoA seoq “Suniodal
pue JuawAed Ajawi} 03 pajiwi| Jou Ing Suipn|dul ‘swua) JuswaaJlde ||e yum sulAjdwod
sjuaidinal aunsua 01 syuawaaide | 071d J01uow sailijeddiunw jeyl aanesadwl si

1| “JuaWdo|aA3p JIWOUOID 10 |00} B SE PAsN U0 aJe (SLOTId) Paxel Jo nar uj| sjuswAed

VIN

*$T0Z Ul S8uipuly yipne ou aiam a1ayl j1 ,V/N,, Jamsue Ajug ‘spuawwo)
13pun ‘s91q 01 payuwgns sem uejd uoide aA11331102 3Y3 a1ep 3yl Yyum Suoje ‘s3ulpuly
1eadau ay3 1s1] asea|d ‘ou s| Jamsue ayl J| ¢1IpNe 9T0¢ 24l Ul paleadal 10U ale Asyl jeyl

NS pasSaIPPE (¢ PUE Ue[d UOIDE oAIDa1103 9yl Ul paljiiuspl (T U23q 1pNne GTO¢ 943 Wwoly
SFUIPUT} JIPNE |[B SABH "S212U3I21J9p PA)0U 1234402 pinoys saijedidiunuw ‘@10)243y3 ‘ssaso.d
ay1 sen|eaap sSuipuly asayl Sunous) -uswanoidw) Sulpasu seale ssalppe sSulpul Hpny

SOA

IS TETTIT M
Japun a1ep Sunaaw ayj Ajlauapi ases|d JsaInuiw Sunsaw a|qe|ieae-Apignd

Ul Jeadde UOISN[OUO) pue SSuUlpul} 9yl Op (¢ PUE 'Sull@all Apoq 3UlUIaA0T pajnpayas

E UO W]l epuase pais| e Se paJeadde UOISSNISIp padusialal-anoqe ayl sey (T JeaA

158d ay1 UIQIA sanl|1oey o1jgnd Suioueuly pue saoiaies ulpiaoad ul saaijeulalje [enualod
J9U10 UBY) 1USID144 dJ0W a4e (Z pue ‘1salaiul 2jjgnd ay) aAJas 01 3nUNUOD (T SalMIoyIne
Su11SIXa J19Y3 JAYIBYM SSDUPPE PINOYS SUOISN|IUOD pue s3Uipul{ "SUOISN|ouU0d pue

s3uipuiy 412y1 ssnasip Apignd pue pajesud Ayl sanuoyine Jo Ajoyine ay) ssasse Ajjenuue
1ses| 1e pjnoys saiyjedpiuniy ‘|ercidde pieog aoueuly 2207 YM pue siglaweled uiensd
01123[gns Ayioyine ue aAjossip 01 Apoq SuluIaA0S |eJ0| B SMO||B 0Z-VYS: VOV V'S T'N "2AJ3s
Aay1 21jgnd ay3 03 aAIsuodsaiun pue Juaidijaul ‘|njS1SeM W 0I3q Ued SulIo}UOW [3AI)
-|e20] JUBIINSsuUl J0 diYsiDqUUISW Yeam YIIM S1LIoYINe ‘Suoissiw J1ayl |[14ny Ajnjssadons
sanoyine Auew pue ‘@eudoidde ualo s AjlJOYINe UE JO UOIe3ID B|IYA “sudping Apoq
Suluiano8 2anpal 03 40 ‘paau d1gnd e Suissauppe UO UOIUS]IE pue SN0} J21e34g apiao.d
03 (213 ‘senoyine uod ‘sanuoyine Suisnoy ‘sanioyine Juswdo|anapal ‘sanioyine
$3111|11N ‘s1013S1P 2414 SulpN|dUl) S3IIIOYINE BIOW JO BUO pPalea.d aney sanijediunuw Auey

VIN

SIUaWWO)

uonsany

1amsuy

SIamsun uo sywij Jof 123ys fo wojoq 30 A3) 10j0) 33s Isn3jd

STvl

(sua0lAl) Y3nodog sa3jeq uieunolp

8TOZA4S/LT0Z AD 133YS}I0oM\ S2211081d 1599




L10Z ‘ST 3snSny uo puog Jeah oz
e Se p|os s210N uonedidijuy puog pajenwinidy

¢ 8upueuly Jusuewad piemol anow o1 ASajesis e padojanap pue ss1ou uoiedppue
puogq Suipueisino s1 paien|eas Ayjeddiunw JNoA sey "@2uenss| O S1S0J pale|jul

pue 51502 SulAiies Azessadauun Jnoui 01 saiyjedidiunw asned ued ulpueuly Jusuew.sd
uO $3184 152191U1 MO| JO @8ejueape el 01 uljie) ‘wsiueydaw Sudpueuly Juapnid

puUE 3|geuosSeas B 3¢ Ued S33ou uoneddue puoq JoO |[eMauUaJ pue aouenss! ayl a|Iym

SOA

£T0T ‘1€ Menuer paji4

J[Semedpiunur A3S 10 T€ AIN[) T€ AJBnuel UBY] J93e| OU UOISIAIQ

9U3 YHM JeaA [edsH} Suipadaid 9yl 10j JUsWialels 1gaQ [enuuy J1U01133[3 SH 3[l} Ajljedpiunw
TINOA PI "€-£T0T 92110N ddoUBUI4 [BIOT Ul P3GLIISaP aunpadoid ayl Suimo||oy A|ed1uosios|e
P23l 99 1SNW JUSWI]E]S 1g3P |ENUUE BY1 "SIIIAISS UBWUIBA0D [BIOT JO UOISIAIQ

9Y1 Y1iMm JUSW1e]1S 1gaQ [Bnuuy s3I 9|14 ‘4eaA |easi) syl 1O yluow 1si) 3y JO pud a3yl

210434 ‘||eys Alljedidiunw ydoea Jo21440 [eldUEUL J31Yd 39Ul ‘Ob-2 :¥0Y "V'STN 01 1uensind

SO

£T0T ‘€ |udy pa|y Hpny

'awes 4o} Suuoimlad uoinjosas Apoq

Suiuianos e 0} asuodsas ul uoisualxa ue pajuessd Ajssaidxa J0322.11q 2Y3 1 ,V/N,, uolsanb
siy} Jamsue Ajuo Aew nop UOISIAIQ 92U} YHM 1J0d=aJ IPNE 3yl Jo Adod a1ed1jdnp paljiiad

E Po|l} SeY JOlpNe InOA Jey] PauWlijuod pue 'sweJljawil A1oiniels ayl ulylim Jeal [edsy
guipaoa.id oy J0} 1IPNE pa3a|dwod S paAladal Aj[edRIunw JNOASeH "49)2 [edpiunw

9yl yum [euiSiio ay3 Sul|iy Jo14e sAep g ulylIm UOISIAIQ 341 Y1IM SUOIIEPUIWILLIODSS pue
1odasyipne ay: jo Adoa a1ed1jdnp paijiad e ywgns ol Jolipne s Alljedidiunw ayi salinbal
9-G:Y0r V'S N “42yling “JeaA |easiy 19yl JO 350|2 3yl JoLEe SYIUOW 9 UIylIM JeadAh |edsiy
Suipadaid ay3 Joj upne |enuue 119y} 313|dwod 01 saijeddiunw sauinbal #-6:v0y “V'STN

SaA

sjuawwio)

uonsanp

Jomsuy

S13Msup uo s3] 1of 13ays fo woioq b A3)] 10[0) 235 asL3|d

Sert

(s1110lAl) YSnoaog sy e uieunolp

8TOZA4S/LTOZ AD 193YSHIOM S8d110RId 1599



LT0Z ‘vz |1dy pajdopy

‘uondope 128pnq Aejap o1 Aljeddiunw

3y} Pa39NnJisul UoISIAIQ Y3 JI Jo uoisiaiadng a3eis Japun si Ayjeddiunw JnoA §1 /N
pasamsue 3q Ajuo Aew uonsenb syl ;0Z-9T0¢ 920N 20UeUld [B30T Ul 10323110 Ayl Aq
POPUSIXD SE 10 ME| AQ pPopIA0Id S93EP 9] UBY] J21e| OU 193pnq JeaA Jualind sl ydope pue
3onponul Ajjedpiunw anoA pig  (sa1yjedidiunw JeaA [eds)) a1els 10) 0z Jaquia1das Jo)

0Z Yoie ueyy 1ae| ou s398pnq J1ayy ydope senijedidiunw Jeah Jepusjed jeyi salinbal Ot
-PIVOF V'S TN Pue (sanijedidiunw JeaA [easty 91e1s 404 0T 1sn8ny 10) QT Atenuga4 ueyl 1aie|
ou s138pnq paosnpoJiul 419yl aaosdde sanijedidiunw JesA Jepuajed jey) saainbal -¢:voy
V'STN ‘T'S-7:vVOoy V'S TN 03 1uensind a1ep Jale| e 4140J $185 10133417 3yl ssajun

SBA

*9Hsqam YSnosog uo ‘sap

§198pnqg [enuue 3y}

Sunndope uo Suieay a1gnd ay3 4o a1ep 3y 01 Joud yaam suo 1sea| e 123png Ajpualii-iasn
pasnpoJiul sy yum a1gnd sy Suipinoad Alljedidiunw anoA s| "uo119s 188png A|puatli4-1asn
e @1eJodiooul 198png |edidiunw [enUUE PaJNPOJIUL 3Y) 1Byl Salinbau (B)8°¢-0€:S DV TN

SOA

-suoile|n3au uolleayijenbaad

Aue pardope jou sey Ajedidiunw ayj ssaym ajqedijdde Ajuo s1 /N, ¢suoliensal
uonedyjenbaud [je Supiojus pue Sunuawsa|dwi o1 Joud |eaoidde 1032311Q Supjess
Suipnpul ‘SZ-TT:VOr V'S TN Ul Y104 3135 ssa204d oy Suimoyjos Allfedidiunwi inoA s| -meT
$19B43UOD J1|gNd [BI07 Y3 Japun suolie|ndal uoledyljenbaud Sujuladuod |ielsp syling olul
$908 ZT-9T0TZ 22110N d2UBUl{ |BDOT "19BJU02 3l|gnd Aue uo adueldadde piq JO UoIIPUOD

e se paiinbai aq J0u ABW PUE 129)}2 PUB 3210} OU JO 3Je suoljejn3al uoliedlyljenbaud

. piq ‘jeaosdde 1030241Q Wasqy “uawdinba pue ‘[enided ‘Ajljige eldueuly ‘sausiisdxa

01 ulpJ0d2e paxl} aq UBD sjuawalinbal uonedyijenbald “Mmeq S10esluo) 2l|gnd |e207

ay1 01 193[gns syun Suioesuod Ag pajoeua suonejndal uoiedijijenbaud [je aroidde 1snw
S$3JIAIDS JUBWUIIA0Y) [BIOT JO UOISIAIQ BY3] 4O 40123410 8Y) ‘SZ-TT:VO¥ V'S TN 01 luensing

VIN

sjuaWwWo)

uonsanD

1aMmsuy

Si2MsuD Uo s}l 1of 123ys Jo wio31oq 1o A3)] 10j0) 335 Isnald

Sevl

(s1a01) ySnoaog saeq ulelunoln

8TOZA4S/LTOZ AD 199YSHIOM S3d11dRId 1S9




‘s)yauaq yijeay jo naij ui syuswied Supjew jou jo Adjod

e sey Aujedpiunw ayy aiaym ajqedyjdde Ajuo si ,v/N, ¢IUswaaide 1oqe|Aue ul syuswAed
T2AIEM 21EJU][EaY SUREeJodIodu] Wol) Ulel}al (€ pue [SjusWAEd JSAlEM SUBIND[ED UsyMm
1500 winiwaid [e101 3yl WoJj SUOIIESqo uonnqgiuod ajedyl|eay 2aAkojdwa 10npap (T
TWNWIXEW AI0IN1EIS oY} JO 5S20Xa Ul SjuswWAed JaAlem JuiAed wiody ureajal (T Alljedpiunw
[TNOA S20Q °siuswAed JaAiem Jy2Uaq Y1|EY UO UOISSNISIP 43y} 10} OT-9T0Z PUe ZT-0T0Z
S22110N 22ueul |B207 23S “SuluieSieq aAI1193]|00 WOy Papn|oxa Ajliolniels ale syuswAied
JBAIBM 11J2US( Y}BSH "WnwiXew A1oIniels syl ueyl Jamo| stuswAed Jaaiem 13410 Aew pue
‘s11yauaq Yijeay jo Janiem Joj stjuswAed sasAo|dws 1240 01 10U IO JBYIBYM 01 SB U0I3JISIp
9|0s aAeY S1un [2307 °1502 wniwald [e10] 3yl Wo4} uonesijgo uoingUIUuod aJedyljesy
s,29A01dwa 3y} 1onpap Isnw yun [e30] 3yl ‘awAied Janiem s 2aA0|dwa ue Sulje|ndjed
USYAM "000°SS 40 ‘Janlem ay) JO 1nsal e Se Jiun |ed0] 3y} Ag paaes Junowe ay} Jo (%s2)
jua2.4ad aA1}-AlUBMY JO 43559| 3yl paadxa Jouued sjuswAed ‘Z ©2 ‘0TOZ “1°d JO 21ep BAIIBD
3yl SI Y2Iym ‘0T0Z ‘TZ ABIAl 193J€ 10 UO P3|} SIaAIEM J04 "98eI9A0D JO JaAIeM S, 29A0|dwe
9Y1 JO 3NsaJ e Se }jun [e30]| 3yl AQ paAes Junowe ayi Jo (%0S) wad4ad Ay} pa23X3 Jouued
‘@2uls Ajsnonuiuod paulejulew pue ‘010z ‘Tz ABIAl @10jaq Paji} SISAIEM 104 SJUdWAed

SaA

‘sauljaping g/ Ja1dey) ay1 o1
Suipiodoe suonngIuod 3y} s133j03 ysnoiog ayl

éseakojdws pue
SI201440 || 10} (431e3.8 S1 JaAay2Iym ‘Alejes 3seq JO %G T 10) SUOIINGLIIUOD }I}auaq yijeay
10} puo g7 J91deyd ayi Aq Y1404 195 Junowe ay) 1ses| 1e 8uilda||0d Ayjeddiunw INoA s|

SOA

sjjauaq yijeay aniadas seakojdwa awn|ng Ajup

*s}iyauaq yieay jo nayj ul uswAhed JaAiem e 10 spydUaq Yijeay Jayne Sulndaa

[eniyyo pajulodde 1o pa3aala Yoea O I3 PuUE BWEU Y] UOIIIAS SJUSWWO) 3Y3 ul 3s]|
asea|d ‘,ON,, paiamsue noA j| -, ON, Jamsue }snw noA ‘010z ‘Tz AelAl 22uls Ajsnonunuod
uonisod J1ay3 ul Sulnias Jo anIA Aq (0s Sulop 10U 10} JISAIEM B DAIDIBI 10) SHiaU(q

yieay (dgHs) weiSoud siyauag YijeaH a1eis el 01 193[2 oym sjeidiyjo pajuiodde

10 pa3aaja awn-Med sey Ayjedpiunw anoA j) “syyauaq yijeay aaiadal sjenyjo pajulodde
10 pa129)a swi-Hed ou §i ,saA, samsue AjuQ ¢ (oam Jad sinoy G uey) Ss3|) S|eidi4o
pajuiodde pue pa123]a awil-1ed a8e1aA00 aiedyyjesy woly apnppxe Alljeddiunw unoA ssoq

SOA

Sjuswwo)

uonsanp

Jamsuy

SI2MSUD UO SHW| iof 133ys fo wio13oq 1o A3 10jo) 235 asvald

ST

(s110jAl) YSnoiog s23 e UIBjuUNo|Al

8TOZALS/LTOZ AD 133YsSHIO/M S3I1deId 1539



666T Adenuer aauis ‘ss)

;soako|dwa uolun-uou 1oy syuswAed 1o sasnuoq ‘spieme ALASSUO| Sulleulwl|d
Aatjod ua3um 4o uollejngal ‘uoin|osas ‘eaueulplio ue pardope Alljedidiunw UnoA seH

SaA

€C

666T Alenuer aauis ‘sap

¢91EP UIR1ISD B J3)JR PO1B|NWINIIE SARI| YIIS 10}
seaAojdwa uolun-uou a1esuadwod jou 03 Adljod uallm e painisul Ayjeddiunw JnoA sey

SSA

‘JuawaJinal je ynoAed ou aq ued 243y3 os Jeah
0} JeaA wo.y aAe3) oIS Jo 1aA0 Aried ou si auayl

‘uoisinoad yons yoea ajeuiwi|a 01 sucnenosau ujuiedieq aAl123]|02 3y}

0 sniels ayy yum Suoje ‘Jolenigse ue Aq pasodwi uoisiaoid 4ons Yyoes ,Sjuauwwo),, Jspun
Aynuapr asnw Ayjedpiunw 3yl ‘, /N, Suliamsue §| -, \7/N,, 9 Ued Jamsue InoA ‘ujuiesieq
3A1399]|02 YySnoJy3 uoi1esi|qo [en1oeIIuOD B Yons leuiwi|a 01 Suiyass si Ayjedidiunw sy}
1nq uonesiigle Suipuiq ul Jojesyigie ue Aq pasodwi a19m suoisinoad Yyans §| ¢3SIEp UIeLad
E J91J€ Po1B|NWINIO. SABD| 32IS 10J SooA0|dW pIes e3esuadwiod 10U 01 AJ1jod e pajniiasul
Aji[edipiunw JNOA Sey JusWaaige SulUlesieq 9A199([0J € A paJan0d seakojdwa Aue 104

SO

SWIMIDNO0 3AIBI3M
saaiojdwa SYJOAN J1jgngd pue sis210 3d1jod Ajup

¢VSTd 9yt Jopun 1dWoXa Se palISSE[D SooA0|dWa 03 aWIilIaA0 sulAed woijy

Uleajal Anjedpiunwi JnoA seog "pouad Aed swes ay) ul pazijiin s aAea| yans ssajun Aed
3WI1J3A0 JO WIO0} B 3¢ 0} PaJapIsuod si syuawAed ysed Jo naj| ul awil anes| pajesuadwo)
*5U0ISsas Suluiedy ul uonedionied pue s§uinaaw 1ySiu 1e ddueBpUDIIE ‘SBIDUIBIBWD

Suunp payJom awy Joj Aed awiuano apnjraid osje pjnom sniels ydwax3 “(eduepingd
pa|ie1ap 2J0W 10} [2SUNOI JOge| YHM 3 NSuod pinoys noA) ys14 syl Japun jdwaxs se
paljisse)d aq os|e Aew saaAojdwa [eddiunw 9yl “Aed awiliaA0 01 PajIiaua Jou SNy} pue
snie)s 1dwaxa Suiney se paijisse|d AjjeaidAl e speay Juswpedap 19ylo pue syaiyd ad1jod
‘syuapualunadns sydom a1gnd ‘sp4D ‘sy4910 [edidiunw ‘siojedisiuiwpe/sisSeuew ‘s|eijo
P31232 Sk yans saaAo|dwa JuawWwaSeur|Al ‘SWIIISA0 0] PI|1IIUL 10U shyl pue Jdwaxa

se paiyisse|d saako|dwa asoy Joj 1dadXa }33M >I0M € U] SIN0Y Ot 49A0 sinoy ||e Joj pled
aqg 1snw Aed awiiano eyl Suuinbas me| |esapay e si (¥S14) 10V SpJepuels Joge Jieq ay L

SoA

0c

Sjuswiwo)

uol}sany

1aMmsuy

SI2MSUD UO SHUIL 10§ 193Ys o W0110q 10 A3) 10j0) 235 a503|d

STrt

(s11101A]) ySnoiog sa3je7 UIBJUNOIA]

8TOZA4S/LT0Z AD 193YSHI0/\ sa11dRld 1539




¥10¢ ‘g Jaquisrdas

‘paiepdn 10 paydope sem jenuew [auuosiad ayl yoym

1e Suileaw 2y} JO 3ep Y} UOIIBS SJUBWIWO) Y3 Ul apinoad aseald ‘saA 4| FSieak aAl} 15e|
31 UIYIIM S0UBUIPJO JO UOIIN|0SaJ AQ 00CPUEL/[enuew [suuosIad aaAo|dw? ue pajepdn
10 pajdope Ajljedpiunwi JNoA SEH “s4ayjo Suowe ‘Ajlanoe |ediiijod pue Supjows ‘S3|aiyan
diysumoy Jo asn ‘sAepijoy ‘sAep 32IS pue UOIIEIRA O} JUdWISSeIRY pue ‘3IU3|oIA ‘Ayajes
‘uoneulwdsip wouy SuiSuel seale ul suonesdijqo pue s1ysi saai0|dwa malral pjnoys
suonedljgnd asay "asn 419y} 104 S2IBJ PAIUNOISIP J2440 PUB JUSWINIOP B 1YINS JO uoidope
ay) @8e1n0dua si31IeD JdueInsul Auey ‘sujauaq pue saunpadoud ‘sajorjod s Ayjedpiunw

e ASAUOD 0] |001 9|geN|eA B SB 3AJ3S $Hooqpuey J0 sjenuew [auuosiad asAojdw]

SaA

BUETTEES AV

Suluiedieg aA1129]|0) € J9pUN PaIAA0D

s1 ya1ym Jo auo ‘sasfo|dwa pasaylejpuessd

(2) om1 jo uondsoxa syl Yum ‘666T

2auis AunaSuoj papinoad jou sey ySnosog syl

‘uoisinoid yons yoea ajeuiwi|e

01 suoijeijogau sululesieq aA1129]|03 9Y1 4O SNIEIS 3y} ylm Suoje ‘Jolesligle ue Ag pasoduwil
uoIsiA0d Yans Yyoea ,syuawwo),, Japun Ajiauapl 1snw Apjediniunw syl ‘ v/N,, Suamsue

JI “8uiuie8ieq aA1303(]02 y8noy) uo1eSI|qo [EN1IBIIUOD B YINS S1BUIWIIS 03 SUPD3S S|
Ayjedipiunw ay) 1ng uoneJsiigle Sulpuiq ul Jolellige ue Ag pasodwi a1am suoisinoad yons
J1 W/N, 29 ued uonsanb siyy 01 Jemsue ay| ¢31ep payidads e 210j3q pally saaAo|dwa 10}
SIUSWAEd 10 Sesnuoq 'SPJBME AJIASSUO| AUE SUISEIDUl WOJ) Pauleljal pue "alep paldads
B 191J€ 10 U0 pally SooA0[dwa 10} SJUSWAEd 10 S3snuoq 'spieme AJIA95UO] ||B pajeulwi|a

Aijedpiunw JnoA sey uswsalse sujulesieq aAlld9||0d e AQ p=12n02 seaAo|dwa Aue 104

SaA

EFUETITi[o)g]

uonsanY

1amsuy

slamsup uo sywiyj Jof 39ays fo wo3roq o A3y 10j0) 33s 3Isb3|d

STl

(s1a0n)) ySnoaog sanjeq ulelunop

8TOZA4S/LTOZ AD 193ySHI0/\ S3dNYdeId 1599



LT0T ‘6 1993090

ue23 aui9jep

e

QwIBN

0sTID

“Sunaaut o1jqnd p1es Jo SANUIW Y} UL Pajels 9

(S)# uoneoynIa)

01 “A[oAnoadsal ‘s1ad1j() [BIOURUL] JAIYD PUB SALBHSIUNWPY JIIYD Syl Aq JOSISY} UOLEILFIHSD

3U) PUB ‘S}|NSal AIOJUSAUJ U3 YIIM “<d)ep Masul> uo 3uneau ofqnd e Je uaay pajejduiod

SB AIOJUDAU] 9011081 159¢ 8107 AJS/L10Z AD 2Ul SSNISIP [[LM/Passnosip <Alunoy) Hasul>

10 Auno)) ay} ur <Afediofuni MasuL> Y1 JO Apog SUILISA0D) 2y} Jey} AJad Aqalay |

uonBIYIII)) S I [eddIUNIy

LT0T ‘6 1993000 DI12S05) BITUOA]
ae(q QWEN
L90-0 O4IND "aBpajmoy] AW JO 152q 2yl 0}

(S)# uoneoyIIa)

21BINDDE SI AIOJUDAU] SIO1JORL] 1Sag SIU} Ul papiaoid uoneuLIOjuL aY) 1By} AJILIR0 AQaJay |

UONEIYIIIA)) §,199GJO [¢PRUEUL] JAIUD

L10T ‘6 12q1020 133BUB[A] Yanolog - &[0aYyS [ PIeydny

ae(q IPLL  FWEN

601 VdO *€L00-O OAND "a8Pa|MOUY AW JO 159q 23 O}
AMV% uoneodJIua) 2]eInode sI bQ.:P.F: $ad110e1d 1seg SIYl Ul muuﬁm.).upn— uorjeuLIofUl 2y} 1eyl \@_too \nn—uumﬂ 1

UOHEIYIIID)D) §,199JO FANELSIUIWPY JOIYD

9% 2400S|  %Z6

(W/N +S2A) @1025| €T
‘pajamsuy |10l ST
V/N ¥
ON z
soA| 61
SRETEN 0

SUIWILO)D) uoisanY lamsuy

S1amsup uo syl 10f 123ys Jo wio10q 1o A3) 10[0) 235 IsV3|d

SevT

(s1a0jAl) ysnoaog sexeq uleiunopn

8TOZA4S/LTOZ AD 193YSHIOM Sad11deid 1seg




playyum 1uawAed Y13 pue yy1dIAD [eul 40 %00T

G-0
plRyylm JuawAed Y13 pue vyIdIND [euly JO %S| OT-9
plRYYUM JuawAed Y13 pue vy IdIND |Bul} 10 %0S| ST-TT
playyum juswied Y13 pue vuldIAD [euly JO0 %GZ| 02-9T

Ajeusd oN| sz-TT

PIBYYUM pIy| 21035
1P001-9102/9}/SUlI/SD|P/SUOISIAIP/EOP/ACD TU MMM aNY| 61
30P ¢ 1-010¢/0 }/SUJ|/SDIP/SUOISIAIP/EIp/A0D UMMM/ :dlY| 61
1302 9102/9}/SUJI/SDIP/SUOISIAIP/EOP/ACD TU MMWW//-ORY| 91
1P0 21 -910¢/9}/SU}I/SD|P/SUOISIAIP/EOP/A0D 1U MMM//-GRY .
IPA £-€102/< |./SU/SD|P/SUOISIAIp/EOp/AOD TUMAMWW/IRY| 21

S}ULgaM JO 3jqel| uoiyseny
paniw.ad silamsue oN, pue ,saA, AJuQ = uaai

paniwiad siamsue y/N, 10N, ‘S8A, = pay T

sjuaWWo) uonsanp lamsuy

SI2MsuD Uo sl 10f 123Yys fo wiolroq 1p A3) 100D 335 3sn3|d

Scrt

(s1a0jAl) Y3noaog sayeq UlejunolA|

8T0ZA4S/LTOT AD 133YSHIO/ S011deld 1529




New jersey | o el %‘-;'
department of community aff” 5.‘ 3

LFN 2017-14

August 1, 2017

Local Finance Notice

Chris Christie Kim Guadagno Charles A. Richman Timothy J. Cunningham
Governor Lt. Governor Commissioner Director

Contact Information

Director's Office
V. 609.292.6613
F. 609.633.6243

Legislative and
Regulatory Affairs

V. 609.292.6110
F. 609.633.6243

Financial Regulation
and Assistance

V. 609.292.4806
F. 609.984.7388

Local Finance Board
V. 609.292.0479
F. 609.633.6243

Mail and Delivery
101 South Broad St.
PO Box 803
Trenton, New Jersey
08625-0803

Web:
v ivisi lgs

E-mail: digs@dca.nj.gov

Distribution

Municipal Clerks
Municipal CFOs
Administrators & Managers
Municipal Elected Officials
Auditors

CY 2017/SFY 2018 Best Practices Inventory

The State’s Fiscal Year 2018 Appropriations Act (P.L. 2017, ¢.99) requires
the Division of Local Government Services (the Division) to determine
whether some portion of a municipality’s CMPTRA and ETR aid will be
withheld based on the results of a Best Practices Inventory (the Inventory)
to be completed by each municipality. The Inventory encourages
municipalities to embrace practices that promote financial accountability,
sound management and transparency. This Local Finance Notice provides
guidance on how the Division will implement this statutory requirement.

Municipalities operating on a Calendar Year basis must return their
completed Inventory to the Division by Friday, October 20, 2017. Those
municipalities operating on State Fiscal Year budgets must return their
completed Inventory by Friday, April 6, 2018. Completion and filing
instructions are included in an Appendix to this Notice. As in previous
years, the maximum amount of aid that is subject to being withheld
by the Division is the full amount of a municipality’s final aid
payment (December 1 for Calendar Year municipalities).

CY2017/SFY2018 Best Practices Format

Noteworthy changes to this year’s Best Practices include the following:

e The Inventory contains 25 questions (reduced from last year’s 30)
e All questions have been asked in prior years’ Inventories

e Municipalities must receive positive credit (“Yes or “N/A”
answers) on a minimum of 21 questions in order to avoid
withholding of aid. The following aid withholding schedule will
be utilized for scores below 21:

16-20: 25% of final CMPTRA and ETR payment withheld
11-15: 50% of final CMPTRA and ETR payment withheld
6-10: 75% of final CMPTRA and ETR payment withheld
0-5: 100% of final CMPTRA and ETR payment withheld

¢ ¢ 0 O




Local Finance Notice 2017-14 August 1, 2017 Page 2

The CY2017/SFY2018 Best Practices Inventory is in the form of an Excel worksheet that must be
filled out and emailed to the Division. Note that all of the questions asked this year have been
asked in prior years’ Best Practices and the majority are curable prior to the submission
deadline. The wording of Question 3 has been clarified from last year. Answers of “Prospective”
are not permitted; the only permissible answers are “Yes”, “No”, and “N/A” (for select questions).
The spreadsheet automatically computes the score, with “Yes” and “N/A” (not applicable) counted
as positive answers for purposes of scoring.

Please read each question carefully. Certain questions may expressly state the circumstances
under which a “yes”, “no” or “N/A” answer must be selected, or under what circumstances
additional information must be entered in the right column labeled “Comments”. For questions
with subparts, a “yes” answer means that the municipality is answering affirmatively to all parts
of the question. The municipality must answer “no” if it cannot affirmatively answer all parts of
the questions. Weblinks are provided on the bottom of the Inventory to items cited in Questions
12, 14, 16, and 19.

Questions are color-coded as follows pursuant to their permissible range of answers:
Red = “Yes”; “No”; and “N/A” answers permissible
Green = "N/A" answers are NOT permitted

The Division has identified certain questions that should be applicable to all municipalities. As a
result, “N/A” answers will not be allowed for those questions color-coded green.

For those questions color-coded red, “not applicable” is only an appropriate answer if a
municipality concludes that the requirement is not possible to meet given the municipality’s
circumstances, unless the question specifically limits an “N/A” answer to a particular
circumstance. Using “not applicable” requires an explanation of why the question is not
applicable in the comment space provided.

Once the municipality’s Best Practices Inventory is transmitted to the Division, the
worksheet cannot be amended and resubmitted except by making an appeal to the
Director through the process outlined on Page 4.

Certifying to the Best Practices Inventory & Governing Body Acknowledgement

The municipality’s Chief Administrative Officer, in addition to the Chief Financial Officer, must
certify the Inventory. Space for these certifications is provided on the worksheet. Both officials
must provide their certification number for all licenses they have been issued by the Division of
Local Government Services. If the certifying official does not possess such a license, the space can
be left blank or marked “N/A”. All certifying officers must type in their names and certification
numbers, rather than manually sign and enter same.

Note: The Chief Administrative Officer is the individual, whatever their title, who is in charge
of the municipality’s day-to-day operations. If a municipality does not have a business
administrator or municipal manager, this person would be whatever individual (e.g. municipal
clerk, chief financial officer) is charged with this responsibility.




Local Finance Notice 2017-14 August 1, 2017 Page 3

Please be advised that Best Practices responses are subject to random auditing by the
Division. Officials that certify Best Practices Inventories containing inaccurate responses
may be subject to penalties including the Division taking action against their license.

As for the governing body’s acknowledgement, the completed form must be an agenda item for
discussion at a municipal governing body meeting. The Municipal Clerk must certify on the
worksheet that the Inventory and the results thereof were or will be discussed at a public
meeting, with the inventory results and the certification of same by the chief administrative and
financial officers referenced in the meeting minutes. There is no separate certification document
for municipal clerks to submit. The purpose of the acknowledgement requirement is to ensure
that local officials are apprised of their municipality’s Best Practices Inventory response.

Appeals Permitted

The State Appropriations Act permits the Director of the Division of Local Government Services to
exercise discretion and make reasonable accomodations where the particular circumstances of a
municipality warrant. As in previous years, the maximum amount of aid subject to
withholding is the full amount of the final aid payment.

Municipalities may submit appeals before the submission deadline but not before their Best
Practices Inventory is submitted. The Division encourages municipalities that wish to submit an
appeal to do so in conjunction with their Inventory submission. Appeals to the Director must be
submitted no later than the close of business Friday October 20, 2017 (or Friday April 6,
2018 for SFY Municipalities).

Approved: Timothy J. Cunningham, Director

Document Internet Address
CY2017/SFY2018 Best
Practices Worksheet

http://www.nj.gov/dca/divisions/dlgs/programs/best_practices.html




Local Finance Notice 2017-14 August 1, 2017 ‘ Page 4

APPENDIX

INSTRUCTIONS TO COMPLETE AND SUBMIT THE CY 2017 /SFY 2018
BEST PRACTICES INVENTORY

Step 1 -- Download the Excel spreadsheet from the Division’s Best Practice webpage at
http://www.nj.gov/dca/divisions/dlgs/programs/best_practices.html. The worksheet is locked and
allows access only to relevant fields.

Step 2 — Select Name of Municipality: follow the instruction at the top of the worksheet. (Click in cell
C1, then click on the down arrow on the right side of the cell, then choose the name of municipality.)

Step 3 — for each inventory question, click in the “Select” cell in Column C and choose the appropriate
response.

For those questions that permit a non-applicable answer, if the answer to a question is “Not
Applicable” insert an explanation in the “comment” cell (Column E). The cell can expand to fit
the size of the comment.

Step 4 — The Chief Administrative Officer and Chief Financial Officer for the municipality insert their
hame, certifying to the application’s accuracy, and provide any license number that has been issued
to them by the Division of Local Government Services. For example, if a certified Chief Financial
Officer is also a Certified Tax Collector, their CTC license number should also be provided. Do not
manually sign the certification.

The Chief Administrative Officer is the individual, whatever their title, who is in charge of the

municipality’s day-to-day operations. If a municipality does not have a business administrator or

municipal manager, this person would be whatever individual (e.g. municipal clerk, chief financial
officer) is charged with this responsibility.

Step 5 — The Municipal Clerk will certify that the Inventory results, and the certification of same by
the Chief Administrative Officer and Chief Financial Officer, was discussed with the governing body at
a public meeting and will be incorporated into the minutes thereof. Any license number that has
been issued to the Clerk by the Division of Local Government Services must be provided. Do not
manually sign the certification.

Step 6 — Save the file using the following naming structure: 2017_best_practice_xxxx.xIs and replace
xxxx with the municipality’s 4-digit municipal code # (it appears in Cell B2 after the municipality’s
name is chosen).

Step 7 — Email the worksheet to: bestpractices@dca.nj.gov. Please include in the Subject Line the

name of the municipality and the phrase “Best Practice Submission.”

Email questions concerning completing the worksheet to dlgs@dca.nj.gov with the subject heading
“Best Practices Question”. The deadline for submitting the CY 2017 filing is Friday, October 20, 2017;
the SFY 2018 deadline is Friday, April 6, 2018.




BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR & BOROUGH COUNCIL
SUBJECT: MANAGER’S REPORT —OCTOBER 9, 2017
DATE: OCTOBER 5, 2017

CC: VALERIE EGAN —BOROUGH CLERK

ROBERT OOSTDYK — BOROUGH ATTORNEY

The following represents the Manager’s Report for the meeting of October 9, 2017

1. Borough Hall/Public Safety Facilities Tours — all scheduled tours are completed
(September 11%, 19" and October 1%). The RFP is being written and should be ready for
comments by the end of October.

2 Police Vehicles — after two rounds of public bidding and separate negotiations
with a lender, a Resolution is on the Agenda authorizing the signing of a lease agreement
for two patrol vehicles. I have reviewed the vehicles and equipment list and while it is
substantial and more expensive than the last lease arrangement, it does cover a significant
amount of equipment due the fact a good portion of the equipment that normally would
be transferred from the soon to be retired car to another has seen its useful life and should
be replaced. The equipment includes, but is not limited to, warning lights, prisoner
separators, storage cabinets and new radios (existing ones approximately 15 years old and
out of production and not repairable) and new AED’s (since all cars are not equipped).

The new lease is based on $98,900 for a term of 4 years at 3.98% as compared to the
expiring lease of $72,000 for 4 years at 6.145%. The payments are $2,247.19 per month
or $26,966 annually. The current lease (covering a 2013 vehicle and a 2014 vehicle) has
been paid off as of October 1, 2017. Given the need for new vehicles and the anticipated
delivery time of up to 90 days from order, I am strongly recommending the lease be
approved. The Borough Attorney has reviewed the sample leases and has approved them.

e » Midvale/Pocono Road Improvements — as you recall, the Borough was awarded
a Local Aid Grant in the amount of $222,000 towards the reconstruction of Pocono
Road/Midvale Road Phase II earlier this year. Since the work was not part of the 2017
Capital Budget, no funds were budgeted for design work. As we are nearing the end of
the year, it would be prudent to have the Engineer begin the design work now with the
goal of being out to bid as soon as funds are available in 2018. After reviewing our
exiting capital accounts, there appears to be the needed $15,000 in the 2016 Capital
Account for Road Paving. Absent any adverse opinions from Council I am having
proceed.



4. Request for Proposal’s — Professionals — 2018 - the Personnel Sub-committee
has reviewed the current Borough Professionals and has decided, after considerable
discussion and evaluation, not to solicit proposals for those positions at this time.

3 Budget Timeline — after reviewing the proposed timeline with the Finance
Advisory Committee, certain dates were revised. Attached is the updated timeline.

If there are any questions or you would like further information, please feel free to contact me.
Or, if there are additional items you would like me to address, please let me know as soon as

possible.
L%hard J. Sh¥éola

Borough Manager
Action Items
Next Step Completed by By date
Volunteer spending policies Finance Committee Reviewed and approved at FAC

October meeting

Alarm for water systems, review | Sheola, Engineer, DPW TBD; in review by Engineer &
response time for repairs and Superintendent DPW Superintendent along with
how to prevent in the future Water Division personnel

Attachments Items #2 & #5.




Ytef

equipment
finance
MASTER EQUIPMENT LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT NO.

Master Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement Number Dated
“Lessee”
Fax: E-mail:
“Lessol-,j
TCF Equipment Finance, a division of TCF National Bank, 11100 Wayzata Blvd, Suite 801, Minnetonka, MN 55305
Fax: 952-656-3273 E-mail: customerservice@tcfef.com

RECITALS:

1. Lessee desires to lease certain property from the Lessor described in the schedules to this Agreement that are to be
executed from time to time by the parties hereto (such schedules, whether now or hereafter executed, are hereby incorporated
herein and are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Schedules,” and the items of property leased to Lessee hereunder,
together with all substitutions, proceeds, replacement parts, repairs, additions, attachments, accessories and replacements thereto,
thereof or therefor, are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Equipment”) subject to the terms and conditions of and for the
purposes set forth in this Agreement.

2. The relationship between the parties shall be a continuing one and items of property may be added to or deleted from the
Equipment from time to time by execution of additional Schedules by the parties hereto and as otherwise provided herein.

3. Lessee is authorized under the constitution and laws of the State to enter into this Agreement for the purposes set forth
herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

Section 1.01. Definitions. The following terms will have the meanings indicated below unless the context clearly requires
otherwise:

“Agreement” means this Master Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement No. 567153L including the Schedules and any other
schedule, exhibit or escrow agreement made a part hereof by the parties hereto, together with any amendments to this Agreement.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Commencement Date” means, with respect to any Schedule, the date when the term of this Agreement with respect to that
Schedule and Lessee’s obligation to pay rent under that Schedule commence, which date (a) Lessee hereby authorizes Lessor to
fill in on the executed payment scheduled attached to each Schedule, and (b) shall be the earlier of (i) the date on which the
Equipment listed in that Schedule is accepted by Lessee in the manner described in Seetion 5.01, or (ii) the date on which
sufficient moneys to purchase the Equipment listed in that Schedule are deposited for that purpose with an escrow agent.

“FEquipment” means the property described in a Schedule and all replacements, substitutions, repairs, restorations,
modifications, attachments, accessions, additions and improvements thereof or thereto. Whenever reference is made in this
Agreement to Equipment listed in a Schedule, that reference shall be deemed to include all replacements, repairs, restorations,
modifications and improvements of or to that Equipment.

“Fvent of Default” means, with respect to any Lease, an Event of Default described in Section 12,01,

“Issuance Year” is the calendar year in which the Commencement Date occurs.

“Lease” means an individual Schedule and this Agreement.

Muni_Lease Master_Lease ver. 04.20.16 309087 9/8/2016 9:00 AM Page 1 of 12




“Lease Term” means, with respect to any Lease, the Original Term and all Renewal Terms of that Lease, but ending on the
occurrence of the earliest event specified in Section 3.03.

“Lessee” means the entity described as such in the header of this Agreement, its successors and its assigns.
“Lessor” means, with respect to each Schedule and the Lease of which that Schedule is a part, (i) if Lessor’s interest in, to
and under that Schedule has not been assigned pursuant to Section 11.01, the entity described as such in the header of this

Agreement or its successor, or (ii) if Lessor’s interest in, to and under that Schedule has been assigned pursuant to Section
11.01, the assignee thereof or its successor.

“Maximum Lease Term” means, with respect to any Lease, the Original Term and all Renewal Terms through the Renewal
Term including the last Rental Payment Date set forth on the Schedule that is part of that Lease.

“Net Proceeds” means the amount remaining from the gross proceeds of any insurance claim ot condemnation award after
deducting all expenses (including attorneys’ fees) incurred in the collection of such claim or award.

“QOriginal Term” means, with respect to any Lease, the period from the first Commencement Date for any Schedule under
that Lease until the end of the fiscal year of Lessee in effect at that Commencement Date.

“Purchase Price” means the amount set forth on any Schedule that Lessee may, at its option, pay to Lessor to purchase the
Equipment listed on that Schedule.

“Renewal Terms” means, with respect to any Lease, the optional renewal terms of that Lease, each having a duration of one
year and a term co-extensive with Lessee’s fiscal year.

“Rental Payment Dates” means the dates set forth in the Schedules on which Rental Payments are due.
“Rental Payments” means the basic rental payments payable by Lessee pursuant to Section 4.01.
“Schedule” means any schedule to this Agreement, executed from time to time by the parties hereto.
“State” means the State of Lessee's organization,

“Vendor” means a manufacturer of Equipment as well as the agents or dealers of the manufacturer from whom Lessor
purchased or is purchasing Equipment.

ARTICLE I
REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS OF LESSEE

Section 2.01. Representations and Covenants of Lessee. Lessee represents, warrants and covenants for the benefit of
Lessor as follows:

(a) Lessee is a political subdivision duly organized and existing under the constitution and laws of the State. Lessee
will do or cause to be done all things to preserve and keep in full force and effect its existence as a body corporate and
politic. Lessee has a substantial amount of one or more of the following sovereign powers: (a) the power to tax, (b) the
power of eminent domain; and (c) police power.

(b) Lessee is authorized under the constitution and laws of the State to enter into this Agreement and the transaction
contemplated hereby and to perform all of its obligations hereunder.

(c) Lessee has been duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement by proper action and approval of its
governing body at a meeting duly called, regularly convened and attended throughout by a requisite majority of the
members thereof or by other appropriate official approval.

(d) This Agreement constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of Lessee enforceable in accordance with its
terms, except to the extent limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other laws affecting creditors’

rights generally.

(e) No event or condition that constitutes, or with the giving of notice or the lapse of time or both would constitute,
an Event of Default exists at the date hereof.

Muni_Lease_Master_Lease ver. 04.20.16 309087 9/8/2016 9:00 AM Page 2 of 12



(f) Lessee has, in accordance with the requirements of law, fully budgeted and appropriated sufficient funds for the
current fiscal year to make the Rental Payments scheduled to come due during the current fiscal year and to meet its other
obligations under this Agreement, and such funds have not been expended for other purposes.

(g) Lessee has complied with such public bidding requirements as may be applicable to this Agreement and the
acquisition by Lessee of the Equipment hereunder.

(h) There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any court, public
board or body, pending or threatened against or affecting Lessee, nor to the best knowledge of Lessee is there any basis
therefor, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would materially adversely affect the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement or any other document, agreement or certificate which is used or contemplated for use in
the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or materially adversely affect the financial
condition or properties of Lessee,

(i) All authorizations, consents and approvals of governmental bodies or agencies required in connection with the
execution and delivery by Lessee of this Agreement or in connection with the carrying out by Lessee of its obligations
hereunder have been obtained.

(j) The entering into and performance of this Agreement or any other document or agreement contemplated hereby
to which Lessee is or is to be a party will not violate any judgment, order, law or regulation applicable to Lessee or result
in any breach of, or constitute a default under, or result in the creation of any lien, charge, security interest or other
encumbrance on any assets of Lessee or the Equipment pursuant to any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, bank loan or
credit agreement or other instrument to which Lessee is a party or by which it or its assets may be bound, except as herein
provided.

(k) The Equipment is essential to the function of Lessee or to the service Lessee provides to its citizens. Lessee has
an immediate need for, and expects to make immediate use of, substantially all the Equipment, which need is not
temporary or expected to diminish in the foreseeable future. The Equipment will be used by Lessee only for the purpose
of performing one or more of Lessee’s governmental or proprietary functions consistent with the permissible scope of
Lessee’s authority.

(I) Neither the payment of the Rental Payments hereunder nor any portion thereof is (i) secured by any interest in
property used or to be used in a trade or business of a non-exempt person (within the meaning of Section 103 of the Code)
or in payments in respect of such property or (ii) derived from payments in respect of property, or borrowed money, used
or to be used in a trade or business of a non-exempt person (within the meaning of Section 103 of the Code). No portion
of the Equipment will be used directly or indirectly in any trade or business carried on by any non-exempt person (within
the meaning of Section 103 of the Code).

(m) Lessee will comply with all applicable provisions of the Code, including without limitation Sections 103 and
141-150 thereof, and the applicable regulations of the Treasury Department that relate to each Lease in order to establish
and maintain the exclusion of the interest components of Rental Payments from gross income for purposes of federal
income taxation. Tn furtherance of the foregoing, Lessee covenants and agrees to prepare (or engage a tax professional to
prepare on Lessee’s behalf) and file all necessary informational returns on a timely basis with the IRS, including, but not
limited to, IRS Series 8038 Forms, which must generally be filed on or before the 15" of the 2™ calendar month after the
close of the calendar quarter in which the Commencement Date occurs. Lessee agrees to provide Lessor with copies of
all such filed returns relating to each Lease contemporaneously with their filing. If Lessee fails to file the necessary
informational returns with the IRS on a timely basis, Lessee hereby authorizes Lessor to engage a tax professional of
Lessor’s choosing to complete the required returns on Lessee's behalf and at Lessee’s expense, which Lessee agrees to
execute and file. If Lessee files informational returns containing incorrect or incomplete information, Lessee hereby
authorizes Lessor to engage a tax professional of Lessor’s choosing to file an amendment to the incorrect or incomplete
informational return on Lessee’s behalf and at Lessee’s expense, which Lessee agrees to execute and file.

(n) Lessee will use the proceeds of this Agreement as soon as practicable and with all reasonable dispatch for the
purpose for which this Agreement has been entered into. No part of the proceeds of this Agreement will be invested in
any securities, obligations or other investments or used, at any time, directly or indirectly, in a manner which, if such use
had been reasonably anticipated on the date of issuance of this Agreement, would have caused any portion of this
Agreement to be or become “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section 103(b)(2) or Section 148 of the Code and
the applicable regulations of the Treasury Department.

Muni_Lease_Master_Lease ver. 04.20.16 309087 9/8/2016 9:00 AM Page3of 12



(0) Lessee represents and warrants that it is a governmental unit under the laws of the State; this Agreement is not a
private activity bond as defined in Section 141 of the Code, and 95% or more of the net proceeds of this Agreement will
be used for local governmental activities of Lessee.

(p) Lessee has never failed to pay payments coming due under any bond issue, lease purchase agreement or other
indebtedness obligation of Lessee.

(q) The useful life of the Equipment will not be less than the Maximum Lease Term.

(r) The application, statements and credit or financial information reviewed by Lessor are true and correct and
made to induce Lessor to enter into this Agreement and the escrow agreement, if any, and Lessee has experienced no
material change in its financial condition since the date(s) of such information.

(s) Lessee shall pay the excess (if any) of the actual costs of acquiring the Equipment under the Agreement over the
amount deposited by Lessor in the escrow fund, if any, established under any related escrow agreement and interest
earnings thereon.

(t) Lessee understands and acknowledges that Lessor has not acted and will not act as a fiduciary for Lessee or as
Lessee’s agent or municipal advisor; Lessor has not and will not provide finaneial, legal, tax, accounting or other advice
to Lessee or to any financial advisor or placement agent engaged by Lessee with respect to this Agreement. Lessee, its
financial advisor, placement agent or municipal advisor, if any, shall each seek and obtain its own financial, legal, tax,
accounting and other advice with respect to this Agreement from its own advisors (including as it relates to structure,
timing, terms and similar matters).

Section 2.02. Conditions to Lessor’s Performance under Schedules. As a prerequisite to the performance by Lessor of
any of its obligations pursuant to the execution and delivery of any Schedule, Lessee shall deliver to Lessor the following:

(a) An Opinion of Counsel to Lessee, in form and substance acceptable to Lessor in its sole discretion, respecting
such Schedule.

(b) A Lessee’s Closing Certificate executed by the Clerk or Secretary or other comparable officer of Lessee, in form
and substance acceptable to Lessor in its sole discretion, completed to the satisfaction of Lessor.

(c) An Essential Use Certificate executed by a duly authorized officer of Lessee, in form and substance acceptable
to Lessor in its sole discretion, completed to the satisfaction of Lessor.

(d) All documents, including financing statements, affidavits, notices and similar instruments, in form satisfactory to
Lessor, which Lessor deems necessary or appropriate at that time pursuant to Section 6.02.

(e) Such other items, if any, as are set forth in such Schedule or are reasonably required by Lessor.

This Agreement is not a commitment by Lessor to enter into any Schedule not currently in existence, and nothing in this
Agreement shall be construed to impose any obligation upon Lessor to enter into any proposed Schedule, it being understood that
whether Lessor enters into any proposed Schedule shall be a decision solely within Lessor’s discretion.

Lessee will cooperate with Lessor in Lessor’s review of any proposed Schedule. Without limiting the foregoing, Lessee will
provide Lessor with any documentation or information Lessor may request in connection with Lessor’s review of any proposed
Schedule. Such documentation may include, without limitation, documentation concerning the Equipment and its contemplated
use and location and documentation or information concerning the financial status of Lessee and other matters related to Lessee.

ARTICLE IIT
LEASE OF EQUIPMENT

Section 3.01. Lease of Equipment. Lessor hereby demises, leases and lets to Lessee, and Lessee rents, leases and hires from
Lessor, the Equipment listed in each Schedule in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and that Schedule for the
Lease Term for the Lease of which that Schedule is a part.

Section 3.02. Lease Term. The Original Term of each Lease will commence on the Commencement Date and will terminate

on the last day of Lessee’s current fiscal year. The Lease Term for each Lease may be continued, solely at the option of Lessee, at
the end of the Original Term or any Renewal Term for an additional Renewal Term up to the Maximum Lease Term for that

Muni_Lease Master_Lease ver. 04.20.16 309087 9/8/2016 9:00 AM Page 4 of 12



Lease. At the end of the Original Term and at the end of each Renewal Term until the Maximum Lease Term has been completed
for a Lease, Lessee will be deemed to have exercised its option to continue that Lease for the next Renewal Term unless Lessee
has terminated that Lease pursuant to Section 3.03 or Section 10.01. The terms and conditions during any Renewal Term will be
the same as the terms and conditions during the Original Term, except that the Rental Payments will be as provided in the
Schedules.

Section 3.03. Termination of Lease Term. The Lease Term for each Lease will terminate upon the earliest of any of the
following events:

(a) the expiration of the Original Term or any Renewal Term of that Lease and the nonrenewal of that Lease in the
event of nonappropriation of funds pursuant to Section 3.05;

(b) the exercise by Lessee of the option to purchase the Equipment granted under that Lease under the provisions of
Article X and payment of the Purchase Price and all amounts payable in connection therewith;

(c) adefault by Lessee and Lessor’s election to terminate that Lease under Article XII, or

(d) the payment by Lessee of all Rental Payments required to be paid by Lessee under that Lease through the
expiration of the Maximum Lease Term.

Section 3.04. Continuation of Lease Term. Lessee currently intends, subject to the provisions of Section 3.05 and Section
4.04, to continue the Lease Term for each Lease through the Original Term and all of the Renewal Terms and to pay the Rental
Payments hereunder. Lessee reasonably believes that legally available funds in an amount sufficient to make all Rental Payments
during the Maximum Lease Term for each Lease can be obtained. The responsible financial officer of Lessee will do all things
lawfully within his or her power to obtain and maintain funds from which the Rental Payments may be made, including making
provision for such Rental Payments to the extent necessary in each proposed annual budget submitted for approval in accordance
with applicable procedures of Lessee and to exhaust all available reviews and appeals in the event such portion of the budget is not
approved. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the decision whether or not to budget or appropriate funds or to extend a Lease for any
Renewal Term is solely within the discretion of the then current governing body of Lessee.

Section 3.05. Nonappropriation. Lessee is obligated only to pay such Rental Payments under this Agreement as may
lawfully be made from funds budgeted and appropriated for that purpose during Lessee’s then current fiscal year. In the event
sufficient funds will not be appropriated or are not otherwise legally available to pay the Rental Payments required to be paid
under a Lease in the next occurring Renewal Term, that Lease will be deemed to be terminated at the end of the then current
Original Term or Renewal Term. Lessee agrees to deliver notice to Lessor of such termination at least 90 days prior to the end of
the then current Original Term or Renéwal Term, but failure to give such notice will not extend the Lease Term beyond such
Original Term or Renewal Term. If a Lease is terminated in accordance with this Section, Lessee agrees, at Lessee’s cost and
expense, to peaceably deliver the Equipment then subject to that Lease to Lessor at the location or locations specified by Lessor.

ARTICLE IV
RENTAL PAYMENTS

Section 4.01. Rental Payments. Lessee will pay Rental Payments, exclusively from legally available funds, in lawful money
of the United States of America to Lessor in the amounts and on the dates set forth in the Schedules without notice or demand.
Rental Payments will be in consideration for Lessee’s use of the Equipment during the fiscal year in which such payments are due.
Any Rental Payment not received on or before its due date will be assessed a late payment fee of 10% or the maximum amount
permitted by law, whichever is less, from its due date. Lessee agrees to pay Lessor a fee, in an amount determined by Lessor, not
to exceed the maximum amount from time to time permitted by applicable law, for any check or automatic payment withdrawal
request that is returned to Lessor because of insufficient funds available in Lessee’s account or a stop payment.

In the event that it is determined that any of the interest components of Rental Payments may not be excluded from gross
income for purposes of federal income taxation, Lessee agrees to pay to Lessor promptly after any such determination and on each
Rental Payment Date thereafter an additional amount determined by Lessor to compensate Lessor for the loss of such
excludability (including without limitation, compensation relating to interest expense, penalties or additions to tax), which
determination shall be conclusive absent manifest error.

Section 4.02. Interest Component. As set forth on the payment schedules attached to the Schedules, a portion of each
Rental Payment is paid as, and represents payment of, interest.

Muni_Lease_Master_Lease ver. 04.20.16 309087 9/8/2016 9:00 AM. Page 5 of 12



Section 4.03. Rental Payments To Be Unconditional. Except as provided in Section 3.05, the obligations of Lessee to
make Rental Payments and to perform and observe the other covenants and agreements contained herein shall be absolute
and unconditional in all events without abatement, diminution, deduction, set-off or defense, for any reason, including
without limitation any failure of the Equipment to be delivered or installed, any defects, malfunctions, breakdowns or
infirmities in the equipment or any accident, condemnation or unforeseen circumstances.

Section 4.04. Rental Payments to Constitute a Current Expense of Lessee. The obligation of Lessee to pay Rental
Payments hereunder will constitute a current expense of Lessee, are from year to year and do not constitute a mandatory payment
obligation of Lessee in any fiscal year beyond the then current fiscal year of Lessee. Lessee’s obligation hereunder will not in any
way be construed to be an indebtedness of Lessee in contravention of any applicable constitutional, charter or statutory limitation
or requirement concerning the creation of indebtedness by Lessee, nor will anything contained herein constitute a pledge of the
general credit, tax revenues, funds or moneys of Lessee.

ARTICLE V
EQUIPMENT

Section 5.01. Delivery, Installation and Acceptance of the Equipment. Lessee will order the Equipment, cause the
Equipment to be delivered and installed at the location specified in the applicable Schedule and pay any and all costs, charges,
expenses and obligations of every kind and nature incurred regarding the importation, shipment, delivery, possession, use, lease,
return, repossession, storage and transfer of any of Equipment. When the Equipment listed in any Schedule has been delivered
and installed, Lessee will immediately inspect such Equipment and accept such Equipment after Lessee, in its sole discretion,
determines that such Equipment is satisfactory, and evidence said acceptance by executing and delivering to Lessor an acceptance
certificate in form and substance acceptable to Lessor. After it has been installed, the Equipment will not be moved from the
location specified in the applicable Schedule, or if rolling stock, its permanent base will not be changed, without Lessor’s consent,
which consent will not be unreasonably withheld. If Lessor, in its discretion, pays any tax, fee, charge or other amount described
in this paragraph, Lessee shall reimburse Lessor therefor on demand, together with Lessor’s administrative and other costs of
paying and invoicing such amounts and, if Lessee fails to pay Lessor any such amount within ten (10) days of such demand,
Lessee shall pay interest thereon until paid at the rate of 18% per annum or the maximum rate allowable by law, whichever is less.

Section 5.02. Enjoyment of Equipment. Lessor hereby covenants to provide Lessee with quiet use and enjoyment of the
Equipment during the Lease Term, and Lessee will peaceably and quietly have and hold and enjoy the Equipment during the
Lease Term, without suit, trouble or hindrance from Lessor, except as otherwise expressly set forth in this Agreement.

Seetion 5.03. Right of Inspection. Lessor will have the right at all reasonable times during regular business hours to enter
into and upon the property of Lessee for the purpose of inspecting the Equipment.

Section 5.04. Use of the Equipment. Lessee will not install, use, operate or maintain the Equipment improperly, carelessly,
in violation of any applicable law or in a manner contrary to that contemplated by this Agreement. Lessee will obtain all permits
and licenses, if any, necessary for the installatioh and operation of the Equipment. In addition, Lessee agrees to comply in all
respects (including, without limitation, with respect to the use, maintenance and operation of each item of the Equipment) with all
applicable laws, regulations and rulings of any legislative, executive, administrative or judicial body; provided, however, that
Lessee may contest in good faith the validity or application of any such law, regulation or ruling in any reasonable manner that
does not, in the opinion of Lessor, adversely affect the interest of Lessor in and to the Equipment or its interest or rights under this
Agreement.

Section 5.05. Maintenance of Equipment; Alterations. Lessee agrees that it will, at Lessee’s own cost and expense,
maintain, preserve and keep the Equipment in good repair, working order and condition. Lessor will have no responsibility to
maintain, repair or make improvements or additions to the Equipment. If any item of Equipment is such as is customarily covered
by a maintenance contract, Lessee will enter into a maintenance contract for that Equipment with the applicable Vendor. Lessee
will not make any alterations, additions or improvements to the Equipment without Lessor's prior written consent unless such
alterations, additions or improvements may be readily removed without damage to the Equipment.

ARTICLE VI
TITLE TO EQUIPMENT; SECURITY INTEREST

Section 6.01. Title to the Equipment. During the Lease Term, title to the Equipment and any and all additions, repairs,
replacements or modifications will vest in Lessee, subject to the rights of Lessor under this Agreement; provided that title to the
Equipment that is subject to any Lease will thereafter immediately and without any action by Lessee vest in Lessor, and Lessee
will immediately surrender possession of the Equipment to Lessor upon (a) any termination of that Lease other than termination
pursuant to Section 10.01 (including but not limited to any termination pursuant to Section 3.05) or (b) the occurrence of an Event

Muni_Lease_Master_Lease ver. 04.20.16 309087 9/8/2016 9:00 AM Page 6 of 12



of Default with respect to that Lease. It is the intent of the parties hereto that any transfer of title to Lessor pursuant to this Section
will occur automatically without the necessity of any bill of sale, certificate of title or other instrument of conveyance. Lessee
will, nevertheless, execute and deliver any such instruments as Lessor may request to evidence such transfer. Lessee, irrevocably
designates, makes, constitutes and appoints Lessor and its assignee as Lessee’s true and lawful attorney (and agent in-fact) with
power, at such time of termination or times thereafler as Lessor in its sole and absolute discretion may determine, in Lessee’s or
Lessor’s or such assignee’s name, to endorse the name of Lessee upon any bill of sale, document, instrument, invoice, freight bill,
bill of lading or similar document relating to the Equipment in order to vest title in Lessor and transfer possession to Lessor.

Section 6.02. Security Interest. To secure the payment of all of Lessee’s obligations under this Agreement and to the extent
permitted by law, Lessee grants to Lessor a first and prior security interest in the Equipment and on all additions, attachments and
accessions thereto and substitutions therefor and proceeds therefrom. Lessee agrees to execute such additional documents in form
satisfactory to Lessor, that Lessor deems necessary or appropriate to establish and maintain its security interest. Lessee agrees that
financing statements may be filed with respect to the security interest in the Equipment created herein.

As further security therefor, Lessee grants to Lessor a first priority security interest in the cash and negotiable instruments
from time to time comprising each escrow fund established under any related escrow agreement and all proceeds (cash and non-
cash) thereof, and agrees with respect thereto that Lessor shall have all the rights and remedies of a secured party.

Section 6.03. Personal Property. Lessor and Lessee agree that the Equipment is and will remain personal property. The
Equipment will not be deemed to be affixed to or a part of the real estate on which it may be situated, notwithstanding that the
Equipment or any part thereof may be or hereafter become in any manner physically affixed or attached to such real estate or any
building thereon. Upon the request of Lessor, Lessee will, at Lessee’s expense, furnish a waiver of any interest in the Equipment
from any party having an interest in any such real estate or building.

ARTICLE VII
ADDITIONAL COVENANTS

Section 7.01. Liens, Taxes, Other Governmental Charges and Utility Charges. Lessee will keep the Equipment free and
clear of all liens, charges and encumbrances, except those created under this Agreement. The parties to this Agreement
contemplate that the Equipment will be used for a governmental or proprietary purpose of Lessee and, therefore, that the
Equipment will be exempt from all property taxes and other similar charges. If the use, possession or acquisition of the
Equipment is found to be subject to taxation in any form, Lessee will pay all taxes and governmental charges lawfully assessed or
levied against or with respect to the Equipment. Lessee will pay all utility and other charges incurred in the use and maintenance
of the Equipment. Lessee will pay such taxes and charges as the same become due; provided that, with respect to any such taxes
and charges that may lawfully be paid in installments over a period of years, Lessee will be obligated to pay only such installments
that accrue during the Lease Term.

Section 7.02. Insurance. At its own expense, Lessee will maintain (a) casualty insurance insuring the Equipment against
loss or damage by fire and all other risks covered by the standard extended coverage endorsement then in use in the State and any
other risks reasonably required by Lessor in an amount at least equal to the then applicable Purchase Price of the Equipment, and
(b) liability insurance that protects Lessor from liability in all events in form and amount satisfactory to Lessor with a minimum
limit of $1,000,000.00 combined single limit or such greater amount as may be prescribed by any applicable state law specifying
minimum insurance requirements; proyided that, with Lessor’s prior written consent, Lessee may self-insure against the risks
described in clauses (a) and (b) of this Section. If required by Lessor, Lessee shall also provide to Lessor payment and
performance bonds naming Lessor as a dual obligee and issued by a surety company rated “A” or better by AM Best. All
insurance proceeds from casualty losses will be payable as hereinafter provided. Lessee will furnish to Lessor certificates
evidencing such coverage throughout the Lease Term.

All such casualty and liability insurance will be with insurers that are acceptable to Lessor, will name Lessor as a loss payee
and additional insured and will contain a provision to the effect that such insurance will not be cancelled or modified materially
without first giving written notice thereof to Lessor at least thirty days in advance of such cancellation or modification. All such
casualty insurance will contain a provision making any losses payable to Lessee and Lessor, as their respective interests may
appear.

Section 7.03. Advances. In the event Lessee fails to maintain the insurance required by this Agreement, pay taxes or charges
required to be paid by it under this Agreement or fails to keep the Equipment in good repair and operating condition, Lessor may
(but will be under no obligation to) purchase the required policies of insurance and pay the cost of the premiums thereof, pay such
taxes and charges and malke such Equipment repairs or replacements as are necessary and pay the cost thereof. All amounts so
advanced by Lessor will become additional rent for the then current Original Term or Renewal Term. Lessee agrees to pay such

Muni_Lease Master_Lease ver. 04.20.16 309087 9/8/2016 9:00 AM Page 7of 12



amounts with interest thereon from the date paid at the rate of 18% per annum or the maximum permitted by law, whichever is
less.

Section 7.04. Financial Information. Lessee will annually provide Lessor with current financial statements, budgets and
proofs of appropriation for the ensuing fiscal year and such other financial information relating to the ability of Lessee to continue
this Agreement as may be requested by Lessor.

Section 7.05. Release and Indemnification. Lessee assumes all risks and liabilities, whether or not covered by insurance,
for loss or damage to the Equipment and for injury to or death of any person or damage to any property whether such injury or
death be with respect to agents or employees of Lessee or of third parties, and whether such property damage be to Lessee’s
property or the property of others which is proximately caused by the negligent conduct of Lessee, its officers, employees or
agents. To the extent permitted by law, Lessee will indemnify, protect and hold harmless Lessor from and against any and all
liability, obligations, losses, claims and damages whatsoever, regardless of cause thereof, and expenses in connection therewith
(including, without limitation, counsel fees and expenses and any federal income tax and interest and penalties connected
therewith imposed on interest received) arising out of or as the result of (a) the entering into this Agreement, (b) the ownership of
any item of Equipment, (¢) the manufacturing, ordering, acquisition, maintenance, use, operation, condition, purchase, delivery,
rejection, storage or return of any item of the Equipment, (d) any accident in connection with the operation, maintenance, use,
condition, possession, storage or return of any item of Equipment resulting in damage to propérty or injury or death to any person
or (e) the breach of any covenant herein or any material misrepresentation contained herein. The indemnification arising under
this paragraph will continue in full force and effect notwithstanding the full payment of all obligations under this Agreement or the
termination of any Lease Term for any reason.

ARTICLE VIII
DAMAGE, DESTRUCTION AND CONDEMNATION;
USE OF NET PROCEEDS

Section 8.01. Risk of Loss. Lessee assumes, from and including the Commencement Date, all risk of loss of or damage to
the Equipment from any cause whatsoever. No such loss of or damage to the Equipment nor defect therein nor unfitness or
obsolescence thereof will relieve Lessee of the obligation to make Rental Payments or to perform any other obligation under this
Agreement.

Section 8.02. Damage, Destruction and Condemnation; Use of Net Proceeds. If (a) the Equipment or any portion thereof
is destroyed, in whole or in part, or is damaged by fire or other casualty, or (b) title to, or the temporary use of, the Equipment or
any part thereof or the interest of Lessee or Lessor in the Equipment or any part thereof will be taken under the exercise of the
power of eminent domain by any governmental body or by any person, firm or corporation acting under governmental authority,
Lessee and Lessor will cause the Net Proceeds of any insurance claim or condemnation award to be applied to the prompt
replacement, repair, restoration, modification or improvement of the Equipment, unless Lessee has exercised its option to purchase
the Equipment pursuant to Section 10,01. Any balance of the Net Proceeds remaining after such work has been completed will be
paid to Lessee.

Section 8.03. Insufficiency of Net Proceeds. If the Net Proceeds are insufficient to pay in full the cost of any repair,
restoration, modification or improvement referred to in Section 8.02, Lessee will either (a) complete such replacement, repair,
restoration, modification or improvement and pay any costs thereof in excess of the amount of the Net Proceeds, or (b) purchase
Lessor’s interest in the Equipment pursuant to Section 10.01. If Lessee will make any payments pursuant to this Section, Lessee
will not be entitled to any reimbursement therefor from Lessor nor will Lessee be entitled to any diminution of the amounts
payable under Article I'V.

ARTICLE IX
WARRANTIES

Section 9.01. Disclaimer of Warranties. LESSOR MAKES NO WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION, EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED, AS TO THE VALUE, DESIGN, CONDITION, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR PARTICULAR USE
OR PURPOSE OF THE EQUIPMENT OR AGAINST INFRINGEMENT, OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY OR
REPRESENTATION WITH RESPECT THERETO. LESSEE HEREBY WAIVES ANY CLAIM IT MIGHT HAVE
AGAINST LESSOR FOR ANY LOSS, DAMAGE OR EXPENSE CAUSED BY THE EQUIPMENT OR BY ANY DEFECT
THEREIN, OR BY THE USE OR MAINTENANCE OF, OR SERVICING OR ADJUSTMENT TO, THE EQUIPMENT
AND, AS TO LESSOR, LEASES THE EQUIPMENT AS-1S AND WITH ALL FAULTS AND WITHOUT WARRANTY OF
ANY KIND. IN NO EVENT SHALIL LESSOR BE LIABLE FOR ANY ACTUAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, SPECIAL OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGE IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT OR THE

Muni_Lease_Master_Lease ver. 04.20.16 309087 9/8/2016 9:00 AM Page 8 of 12



EXISTENCE, FURNISHING, FUNCTIONING OR LESSEE’S USE OR MAINTENANCE OF ANY EQUIPMENT OR
SERVICES PROVIDED FOR IN THIS AGREEMENT.

Section 9.02. Vendor’s Warranties. Lessee acknowledges that Lessor is not a dealer or manufacturer of Equipment of any
kind and is not the seller of the Equipment, and that each unit of Equipment is of a type, size, design and capacity selected solely
by Lessee. Lessee also acknowledges that Lessor finances the Equipment without any obligation to install, test, erect, service or
maintain the Equipment. The only warranty applicable to any Equipment is the Vendor's warranty and Lessor makes no warranty
of any kind to Lessee. Lessee may have rights under the contract evidencing the purchase of the Equipment; Lessee is advised to
contact the applicable Vendor for a description of any such rights. To the extent such warranties are transferable, Lessor hereby
assigns to Lessee during the Lease Term all warranties running from Vendor to Lessor. Lessor hereby irrevocably appoints
Lessee its agent and attorney-in-fact during the Lease Term, so long as Lessee will not be in default hereunder, to assert from time
to time whatever claims and rights (including without limitation warranties) related to the Equipment that Lessor may have against
the Vendor. Lessee’s sole remedy for the breach of any such warranty, indemnification or representation will be against the
Vendor, and not against Lessor. Any such matter will not have any effect whatsoever on the rights and obligations of Lessor with
respect to this Agreement, including the right to receive full and timely payments hereunder. Lessee expressly acknowledges that
Lessor makes, and has made, no representations or warranties whatsoever as to the existence or availability of such warranties by
the Vendor. Lessee acknowledges that each Lease constitutes a “finance lease” under UCC Article 2A in all respects, and that
Lessor’s sole obligations to Lessee under each Lease is not to interfere with Lessee’s quiet enjoyment of the Equipment so long as
Lessee is not in default thereunder. Subject to the foregoing sentence and to the extent permitted by law, Lessee unconditionally
and irrevocably waives any and all rights and remedies against Lessor at law or in equity (including, without limitation, any rights
and remedies granted Lessee under Article 2A of the Uniform Commercial Code and/or the right to reject any Equipment or
repudiate each Lease). Lessee agrees that Lessor assumes no liability for and makes no representation as to the treatment by
Lessee of each Lease, the Equipment or the Rental Payments for financial stateément or tax purposes.

ARTICLE X
OPTION TO PURCHASE

Section 10.01. Purchase Option. Lessee will have the option to purchase the Equipment listed in any Schedule, in whole,
but not in part, upon giving written notice to Lessor at least 30 days before the date of purchase, at the following times and upon
the following terms:

(a) On any Rental Payment Date, upon payment in full of the Rental Payment then due hereunder plus all other
amounts due under that Schedule plus the then-applicable Purchase Price set forth on that Schedule to Lessor, if
applicable; or

(b) In the event of substantial damage to or destruction or condemnation (other than by Lessee or any entity
controlled by or otherwise affiliated with Lessee) of substantially all of the Equipment listed in that Schedule, on the day
Lessee specifies as the purchase date in Lessee’s notice to Lessor of its exercise of the purchase option, upon payment in
full of the Rental Payment and all other amounts then due under that Schedule plus (i) the Purchase Price set forth on that
Schedule for such purchase date if such purchase date is a Rental Payment Date or the Purchase Price for the immediately
preceding Rental Payment Date if such purchase date is not a Rental Payment Date, and (ii) if such day is not a Rental
Payment Date, an amount equal to the portion of the interest component of the Rental Payment scheduled to come due
under that Schedule on the following Rental Payment Date accrued from the immediately preceding Rental Payment Date
to such purchase date, computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

Upon the exercise of the option to purchase set forth above, title to the Equipment so purchased will be vested in Lessee, free and
clear of any claim by or through Lessor.

Section 10.02. Determination of Fair Purchase Price. Lessee and Lessor hereby agree and determine that the Rental
Payments under each Schedule during the Original Term and each Renewal Term represent the fair value of the use of the
Equipment listed in that Schedule and that the amount required to exercise Lessee’s option to purchase the Equipment listed in that
Schedule pursuant to Section 10.01 represents, as of the end of the Original Term or any Renewal Term under that Schedule, the
fair purchase price of the Equipment listed in that Schedule. Lessee hereby determines that the Rental Payments do not exceed a
reasonable amount so as to place Lessee under a practical economic compulsion to renew the term of any Schedule or to exercise
its option to purchase the Equipment under any Schedule. In making such determinations, Lessee and Lessor have given
consideration to (a) the costs of the Equipment, (b) the uses and purposes for which the Equipment will be employed by Lessee,
(c) the benefit to Lessee by reason of the acquisition and installation of the Equipment and the use of the Equipment pursuant to
the terms and provisions of this Agreement, and (d) Lessee’s option to purchase the Equipment. Lessee hereby determines and
declares that the acquisition and installation of the Equipment and the leasing of the Equipment pursuant to this Agreement will
result in equipment of comparable quality and meeting the same requirements and standards as would be necessary if the

Muni_Lease Master_Lease ver. 04.20.16 309087 9/8/2016 9:00 AM Page 9of 12



acquisition and installation of the Equipment were performed by Lessee other than pursuant to this Agreement. Lessee hereby
determines and declares that the Maximum Lease Term does not exceed the useful life of the Equipment.

ARTICLE XI
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEASING

Section 11.01. Assignment by Lessor. Lessor’s interest in, to and under this Agreement, each Lease and the Equipment may
be assigned and reassigned in whole or in part to one or more assignees by Lessor without the necessity of obtaining the consent of
Lessee; provided that any assignment will not be effective against Lessee until Lessee has received written notice of the name and
address of the assignee. Lessee will retain all such notices as a register of all assignees and will make all payments to the assignee
or assignees designated in such register. Lessee agrees to execute all documents, including notices of assignment and chattel
mortgages or financing statements that may be reasonably requested by Lessor or any assignee to protect its interest in the
Equipment and in this Agreement and each Lease and agrees to the filing of financing statements with respect to the Equipment
and this Agreement and each Lease. Lessee will not have the right to and will not assert against any assignee any claim,
counterclaim, defense, set-off or other right Lessee may have against Lessor.

Section 11.02. Assignment and Subleasing by Lessee. None of Lessee’s right, title and interest in, to and under this
Agreement, any Lease or the Equipment may be assigned or encumbered by Lessee for any reason, except that Lessee may
sublease all or part of the Equipment if Lessee obtains the prior written consent of Lessor and an opinion of regionally recognized
“Red Book”-listed counsel in the area of tax-exempt municipal obligations satisfactory to Lessor that such subleasing will not
adversely affect the exclusion of the interest components of the Rental Payments under the applicable Lease from gross income for
federal income tax purposes. Any such sublease of all or part of the Equipment will be subject to this Agreement and the rights of
Lessor in, to and under this Agreement, the applicable Lease and the Equipment.

ARTICLE XII
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 12.01. Events of Default Defined. Subject to the provisions of Section 3.05, any of the following will be “Events of
Default” under any Lease:

(a) Failure by Lessee to pay any Rental Payment or other payment required to be paid under that Lease at the time
specified in that Lease;

(b) Failure by Lessee to observe and perform any covenant, condition or agreement on its part to be observed or
performed under that Lease, other than as referred to in Section 12.01(a), for a period of 20 days afier written notice,
specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, is given to Lessee by Lessor, unless Lessor will agree in
writing to an extension of such time prior to its expiration; provided, however, if the failure stated in the notice cannot be
corrected within the applicable period, Lessor will not unreasonably withhold its consent to an extension of such time if
corrective action is instituted by Lessee within the applicable period and diligently pursued until the default is corrected,

(c) Any statement, representation or warranty made by Lessee in or pursuant to that Lease or its execution, delivery
or performance will prove to have been false, incorrect, misleading or breached in any material respect on the date when
made;

(d) Any provision of that Lease will at any time for any reason cease to be valid and binding on Lessee, or will be
declared to be null and void, or the validity or enforceability thereof will be contested by Lessee or any governmental
agency or authority if the loss of such provision would materially adversely affect the rights or security of Lessor, or
Lessee will deny that it has any further liability or obligation under that Lease;

(e) Lessee will (i) apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator of Lessee, or
of all or a substantial part of the assets of Lessee, (ii) be unable, fail or admit in writing its inability generally to pay its
debts as they become due, (iii) make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, (iv) have an order for relief entered
against it under applicable federal bankruptcy law, or (v) file a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or a petition or an answer
seeking reorganization or an arrangement with creditors or taking advantage of any insolvency law or any answer
admitting the material allegations of a petition filed against Lessee in any bankruptcy, reorganization or insolvency
proceeding; or

(f) An order, judgment or decree will be entered by any court of competent jurisdiction, approving a petition or
appointing a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator of Lessee or of all or a substantial part of the assets of Lessee, in

Muni_Lease_Master_Lease ver. 04.20.16 309087 9/8/2016 9:00 AM Page 10 of 12



each case without its application, approval or consent, and such order, judgment or decree will continue unstayed and in
effect for any period of 30 consecutive days.

Section 12.02. Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default under any Lease exists, Lessor will have the right, at
its sole option without any further demand or notice, to take one or any combination of the following remedial steps:

(a) By written notice to Lessee, Lessor may declare all Rental Payments and other amounts payable by Lessee
under that Lease to the end of the then current Original Term or Renewal Term to be due;

(b) With or without terminating that Lease, Lessor may enter the premises where the Equipment that is subject to
that Lease is located and retake possession of that Equipment or require Lessee at Lessee’s expense to promptly return
any or all of that Equipment to the possession of Lessor at a place specified by Lessor, and sell or lease that Equipment
or, for the account of Lessee, sublease that Equipment, holding Lessee liable for the difference between (i) the Rental
Payments and other amounts payable by Lessee under that Lease plus the applicable Purchase Price, and (ii) the net
proceeds of any such sale, lease or sublease (after deducting all expenses of Lessor in exercising its remedies under this
Agreement, including without limitation, all expenses of taking possession, storing, reconditioning and selling or leasing
that Equipment and all brokerage, auctioneers’ and attorneys’ fees); provided that the amount of Lessee’s liability under
this subparagraph (b) shall not exceed the Rental Payments and other amounts otherwise due under that Lease plus the
remaining Rental Payments and other amounts payable by Lessee to the end of the then cutrent Original Term or
Renewal Term; and

(c) Lessor may take whatever other action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to enforce its rights
under this Agreement as the owner of the Equipment that is subject to that Lease.

Any net proceeds from the exercise of any remedy hereunder (after deducting all expenses of Lessor in exercising such
remedies including without limitation all expenses of taking possession, storing, reconditioning and selling or leasing Equipment
and all brokerage, auctioneer’s or attorneys’ fees) shall be applied as follows:

(i) If such remedy is exercised solely with respect to a single Lease, Equipment subject to that Lease or rights under this
Agreement related to that Lease, then to amounts due pursuant to that Lease and other amounts related to that Lease or
that Equipment; or

(ii) If such remedy is exercised with respect to more than one Lease, Equipment subject to more than one Lease or rights
under this Agreement related to more than one Lease, then to amounts due pursuant to those Leases pro rata,

In addition, Lessee will remain liable for all covenants and indemnities under this Agreement and for all legal fees and other
costs and expenses, including court costs, incurted by Lessor with respect to the enforcement of any of the remedies listed above
or any other remedy available to Lessor.

Section 12.03. No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to Lessor is intended to be exclusive
and every such remedy will be cumulative and will be in addition to every other remedy given under this Agreement or now or
hereafter existing at law or in equity. No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default will impair
any such right or power or will be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time to
time and as often as may be deemed expedient. In order to entitle Lessor to exercise any remedy reserved to it in this Agreement it
will not be necessary to give any notice, other than such notice as may be required in this Agreement.

ARTICLE XIII
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 13.01. Notices. Any written notice hereunder to Lessee or Lessor shall be deemed to have been given when
delivered personally, deposited with a nationally recognized overnight courier (with all fees pre-paid), delivered via facsimile or e-
mail (with confirmation of transmission), or deposited in the United States mail, certified or registered mail, addressed to recipient
at its address set forth above or at such other address as may be substituted therefor by notice given pursuant to the terms hereof.
Lessee hereby agrees that Lessor, including its vendors, service providers, partners, affiliates, successors and assigns, may contact
Lessee at any telephone number provided to Lessor, by placing voice telephone calls (including the use of automatic telephone
dialing systems or prerecorded voice messaging) or, in the case of wireless telephones or other wireless devices, by sending email
or automated (SMS) text messages. '

Section 13.02. Binding Effect. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and will be binding upon Lessor and Lessee and
their respective successors and assigns.

Muni_Lease Master Lease ver. 04.20.16 309087 9/8/2016 9:00 AM Page 11 of 12



Section 13.03. Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement will be held invalid or unenforceable by any court
of competent jurisdiction, such holding will not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof.

Section 13.04. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between Lessor and Lessee,

Section 13.05. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended, changed or modified in any manner by written agreement
of Lessor and Lessee. Any waiver of any provision of this Agreement or any right or remedy hereunder must be affirmatively and
expressly made in writing and will not be implied from inaction, course of dealing or otherwise.

Section 13.06. Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be simultaneously executed in several counterparts, each
of which will be an original and all of which will constitute but one and the same instrument. There shall be only one original
counterpart of this Agreement and it shall bear Lessor’s original signature and be marked “Original.” To the extent that this
Agreement constitutes chattel paper (as that term is defined by Article 2A of the Uniform Commercial Code), a security or
ownership interest intended to be created through the transfer and possession of this Agreement can be done only by the
transfer of such original bearing Lessor’s original signature.

Section 13.07. Captions. The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and in no way define, limit or
describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Agreement.

Section 13.08. Applicable Law; Jury Trial. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with federal
law and, to the extent not preempted by federal law, the laws of the State. TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE
PARTIES HERETO, AFTER CONSULTING (OR HAVING HAD AN OPPORTUNITY TO CONSULT) WITH COUNSEL
OF THEIR CHOICE, KNOWINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION
OR PROCEEDING RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT.

Section 13.09, Electronic Transactions. Lessor, in its sole discretion, may permit Lessee to electronically copy and/or
deliver by telecopier or other electronic means of transmission an executed counterpart of this Agreement, and any document,
schedule, amendment, addendum, supplement or agreement related hereto or executed in connection herewith. By so copying
and/or delivering any such document, Lessee hereby represents and agrees (a) that such transmission constitutes due delivery
of such executed document, (b) that the counterpart of such executed document as printed by the recipient, including Lessee’s
signature thereon, shall be deemed to constitute an original and shall be admissible in any court or other legal proceeding as an
original, and (c) to deliver to Lessor, promptly on request, such document bearing Lessee’s original "wet ink" signature;
provided that neither delivery nor failure to deliver the document bearing Lessee’s original "wet ink" signature shall limit or
modify the representations and agreements set forth in clauses (a) and (b).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor and Lessee have caused this Agreement to be executed in their corporate names by their
duly authorized officers as of the date first above written.

TCF Equipment Finance, a division of TCF National Bank

% Name of Lessee % Name of Lessor

< <

% By: % By:

= | Signature 7| Signature

m <

=) ; g @) . .

@ | Print Name and Title: @A | Print Name and Title:

= =
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the officer of Lessee who executed the foregoing Agreement on behalf of Lessee and
whose genuine signature appears thereon, (i) is the duly qualified and acting officer of Lessee as stated beneath his or her

E o . | signature, (ii) is duly authorized to execute and deliver the foregoing Agreement on behalf of Lessee, and (iii) that the fiscal

< = ﬁ year of Lessee ends on the last day of

= o

= ,LE [5.3 Signature: Title: Date:

H:

OO “ | THE ABOVE CERTIFICATION MUST BE SIGNED BY THE CLERK OR SECRETARY OF LESSEE, AND THE CLERK

OR SECRETARY MUST BE A DIFFERENT INDIVIDUAL THAN THE OFFICER SIGNING IN THE "LESSEE
SIGNATURE" BOX.

Muni_Lease Master_Lease ver. 04.20.16 309087 9/8/2016 9:00 AM Page 120f 12




Ytef

equipment
finance
SCHEDULE OF EQUIPMENT NO. TO
MASTER EQUIPMENT LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT NO.
The “Agreement”: Schedule of Equipment No. dated (the “Schedule”), to Master Equipment Lease
Purchase Agreement No. dated as of
“Lessee”
“Lessor”

TCF Equipment Finance, a division of TCF National Bank, 11100 Wayzata Blvd, Suite 801, Minnetonka, MN 55305

1. Defined Terms. All terms used herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the Agreement.

2. Equipment. The Equipment included under this Schedule is comprised of the items described in the Equipment
Description attached hereto as Attachment 1, together with all replacements, substitutions, repaits, restorations, modifications,
attachments, accessions, additions and improvements thereof or thereto.

3. Payment Schedule. The Rental Payments and Purchase Prices under this Schedule are set forth in the Payment
Schedule attached as Attachment 2 hereto.

4. Representations, Warranties and Covenants of Lessee.

(a) Lessee hereby represents, warrants and covenants that its representations, watranties and covenants set forth in the
Agreement are true and correct as though made on the date of commencement of Rental Payments on this Schedule.

(b) Lessee has experienced no material change in its financial condition or in the revenues expected to be utilized to meet
Rental Payments due hereunder since the date of the most recent audited financial statements reviewed by Lessor.

(c) Lessee understands and acknowledges that Lessor has not acted and will not act as a fiduciary for Lessee or as Lessee’s
agent or municipal advisor; Lessor has not and will not provide financial, legal, tax, accounting or other advice to Lessee or to any
financial advisor or placement agent engaged by Lessee with respect to this Schedule. Lessee, its financial advisor, placement
agent or municipal advisor, if any, shall each seek and obtain its own financial, legal, tax, accounting and other advice with respect
to this Schedule from its own advisors (including as it relates to structure, timing, terms and similar matters).

5. Certification as to Arbitrage and Tax Covenants. Lessee hereby represents as follows:

(a) The estimated total costs of the Equipment listed in this Schedule, together with any costs of entering into this Schedule
that are expected to be financed hereunder, will not be less than the total Principal Portion of the Rental Payments listed in this
Schedule.

(b) The Equipment listed in this Schedule has been ordered or is expected to be ordered within six months of the
commencement of this Schedule, and the Equipment is expected to be delivered and installed, and the Vendor fully paid, within
eighteen months from the commencement of this Schedule.

(¢) Lessee has not created or established, and does not expect to create or establish, any sinking fund or other similar fund (i)
that is reasonably expected to be used to pay the Rental Payments listed in this Schedule, or (ii) that may be used solely to prevent
a default in the payment of the Rental Payments listed in this Schedule.

(d) The Equipment listed in this Schedule has not been and is not expected to be sold or otherwise disposed of by Lessee,
either in whole or in major part, prior to the last maturity of the Rental Payments listed in this Schedule.

(e) To the best of our knowledge, information and belief, the above expectations are reasonable.

(f) Lessee has not been notified of any listing or proposed listing of it by the Internal Revenue Service as an issuer whose
arbitrage certificates may not be relied upon.

(g) Lessee will comply with all applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, including without
limitation Sections 103, 141 and 148 thereof, and the applicable regulations of the Treasury Department to maintain the exclusion
of the interest components of Rental Payments from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation.

6. The Agreement. This Schedule is hereby made as part of the Agreement, and Lessor and Lessee hereby ratify and
confirm the Agreement. The terms and provisions of the Agreement (other than to the extent that they relate solely to other
Schedules or Equipment listed on other Schedules) are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereof.

LESSEE SIGNATURE

TCF Equipment Finance, a division of TCF National Bank

Name of Lessee Name of Lessor
By: By:
Signature Signature

Print Name and Title: Print Name and Title:

LESSOR SIGNATURE

Muni_Lease Master_Schedule v.04.20.2016 309087 9/8/2016 9:03 AM 1




Ytef

equipment
finance
ATTACHMENT 1 TO
SCHEDULE OF EQUIPMENT NO. TO
MASTER EQUIPMENT LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT NO.
EQUIPMENT DESCRIPTION
Description/Serial No./Model No. Location Total Cost

$

This Equipment Description shall be deemed to be supplemented by the descriptions of the Equipment included in the certificates
of acceptance and payment requests submitted pursuant to the escrow agreement, if any, entered into among Lessor, Lessee and
the escrow agent named therein, which descriptions shall be deemed to be incorporated herein.

Lessee: By: Print Name:
Title:

19

Muni_Lease_Master_Schedule v.04.20.2016 309087 9/8/2016 9:03 AM



Ytef

equipment
finance

ATTACHMENT 2 TO
SCHEDULE OF EQUIPMENT NO. TO
MASTER EQUIPMENT LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT NO.
PAYMENT SCHEDULE
Rental payments will be made in accordance with Section 4.01 and this Payment Schedule.
LESSOR: TCF Equipment Finance, a division of TCF National Bank
LESSEE:

COMMENCEMENT DATE*:

INTEREST RATE:

PAYMENT FREQUENCY:

The first Rental Payment shall be due in arrears on the date that is six month(s) after the Commencement Date, and subsequent
Rental Payments shall be due semi-annually on the same day of each six month period thereafter until paid in full.

Rental Interest Principal Purchase
Payment Payment Portion Portion Price
Lessee: By: Print Name:
Title:

% Lessee hereby authorizes Lessor to fill in the Commencement Date based on the earlier of the date that Lessor disburses
funds to the Vendor of the Equipment following receipt of Lessee's executed acceptance certificate, or the date on which
Lessor deposits funds for the purchase of the Equipment with an escrow agent.

Muni_Lease Master_Schedule v.04.20.2016 309087 9/8/2016 9:03 AM



Ytcf

equipment
finance
LESSEE’S CLOSING CERTIFICATE TO
SCHEDULE OF EQUIPMENT NO. 001-0567153-301 TO
MASTER EQUIPMENT LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT NO. 567153L

The “Agreement”: Schedule of Equipment No. dated (the “Schedule”), to Master Equipment Lease
Purchase Agreement No, dated as of
“Lessee”
“Lessor”

TCF Equipment Finance, a division of TCF National Bank, 11100 Wayzata Blvd, Suite 801, Minnetonka, MN 55305

I, the undersigned, the duly appointed, qualified and acting (Clerk or Secretary) of the
above-captioned Lessee, do hereby certify as of ,20  , as follows:
(1 Lessee did, at a meeting of the governing body of Lessee held ,20 | by motion duly

made, seconded and carried, in accordance with all requirements of law, approve and authorize the execution and delivery of
the above-referenced Agreement and the related escrow agreement, if any, on its behalf by the following named representatives
of Lessee:

Title Printed Name Signature
2) The above-named representatives of Lessee held at the time of such authorization and holds at the present

time the office designated above and the signature set forth opposite his or her name is the true and correct specimen of his or

her genuine signature.

(3) The meeting of the governing body of Lessee at which the Agreement was approved and authorized to be
executed was duly called, regularly convened and attended throughout by the requisite majority of the members thereof or by
other appropriate official approval and that the action approving the Agreement and authorizing the execution thereof has not
been altered or rescinded.

4) No event or condition that constitutes, or with the giving of notice or the lapse of time or both would
constitute, an Event of Default (as such term is defined in the Agreement) exists at the date hereof.

(5 All insurance required in accordance with the Agreement is currently maintained by Lessee.

(6) Lessee has, in accordance with the requirements of law, fully budgeted and appropriated sufficient funds for
the current fiscal year to make the Rental Payments scheduled to come due during the Original Term and to meet its other
obligations for the Original Term (as such terms are defined in the Agreement), and such funds have not been expended for
other purposes.

(7 There is no proceeding pending or threatened in any court or before any governmental authority or arbitration
board or tribunal that, if adversely determined, would adversely affect the transactions contemplated by the Agreement or the
interest of Lessor or its assigns, as the case may be, in the Equipment.

(8) The Equipment has not been the subject of a referendum that failed to receive the approval of the voters of
Lessee within the preceding four years.

€)] Lessee hereby designates the Agreement as a "qualified tax-exempt obligation" as defined in Section
265(b)(3)(B) of the Code. The aggregate face amount of all tax-exempt obligations (excluding private activity bonds other than
qualified 501(c)(3) bonds) issued or to be issued by Lessee and all subordinate entities thereof during the current calendar year is
not reasonably expected to exceed $10,000,000. Lessee and all subordinate entities thereof will not issue in excess of $10,000,000
of qualified tax-exempt obligations (including the Agreement but excluding private activity bonds other than qualified 501(c)(3)
bonds) during the current calendar year without first obtaining an opinion of nationally recognized counsel in the area of tax-

Muni_Lease_Master_Schedule v.04.20.2016 309087 9/8/2016 9:03 AM 4



exempt municipal obligations acceptable to Lessor that the designation of the Agreement as a "qualified tax-exempt obligation"
will not be adversely affected.

(10) The Equipment is located at the following address:
(11) The Equipment is located in the following county:
(12) The correct billing address for Rental Payments is as follows:

Street Address:

Phone:
Fax:
Email:
Attention:

(13) The contact information of person responsible for prepariﬁg and filing Lessee's Form 8038-G or 8038-GC is
as follows:

Name:

Street Address:

Phone:
Fax:
Email:

(14) Lessee’s Tax ID number is:.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and the seal of the governing body of Lessee the day and year
first above written,

Signature of Clerk or Secretary

Printed Name of Clerk or Secretary

Muni_Lease_Master_Schedule v.04.20.2016 309087 9/8/2016 9:03 AM 5



Ytef

equipment
finance
LESSEE’S PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS
AND ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE TO
SCHEDULE OF EQUIPMENT NO. TO
MASTER EQUIPMENT LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT NO.
The “Agreement”: Schedule of Equipment No. dated (the “Schedule™), to Master Equipment Lease
Purchase Agreement No. dated as of
“Lessee”
“Lessor”
TCF Equipment Finance, a division of TCF National Bank, 11100 Wayzata Blvd, Suite 801, Minnetonka, MN 55305

Ladies and Gentlemen:

In accordance with the Agreement, the undersigned Lessee hereby certifies and represents to, and agrees with, Lessor as
follows:
) Lessee has reviewed and approved the invoice(s) referenced in the table below. Pursuant to the
Agreement, Lessee hereby irrevocably authorizes and requests Lessor to make payment of the invoice(s) to the vendor(s),
licensor(s) or designee(s) of licensor(s) of the Equipment. Lessee agrees that all terms and conditions of the Lease are in full
force and effect and Lessee shall make all payments when and as required thereby.

| Payee [ Invoice Number | Amount |
| Total | $]

(2) All of the Equipment has been delivered, installed and accepted, and is located at the following address:

3 Lessee has conducted such inspection and/or testing of the Equipment as it deems necessary and

appropriate and hereby acknowledges that it accepts the Equipment for all purposes.
(€3] Lessee is currently maintaining the insurance coverage required by Section 7.02 of the Agreement.

(5) No event or condition that constitutes, or with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute, an Event
of Default (as defined in the Agreement) exists at the date hereof.

6) We acknowledge that Lessor is neither the vendor nor manufacturer or distributor of the Equipment and
has no control, knowledge or familiarity with the condition, capacity, functioning or other characteristics of the Equipment.

(7 The serial number for each item of Equipment that is set forth in the applicable Schedule is correct.
DATED:
Lessee: By: Print Name:
Title:

Muni_Lease_Master_Schedule v.04.20.2016 309087 9/8/2016 9:03 AM 6



Ytef

equipment
finance
ESSENTIAL USE CERTIFICATE TO
SCHEDULE OF EQUIPMENT NO. TO
MASTER EQUIPMENT LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT NO.
September 6, 2016

The “Agreement”: Schedule of Equipment No. dated (the “Schedule™), to Master Equipment Lease

Purchase Agreement No. dated as of

“Lessee”

“Lessor”

TCF Equipment Finance, a division of TCF National Bank, 11100 Wayzata Blvd, Suite 801, Minnetonka, MN 55305

I, , a duly elected, appointed, or designated representative of
(“Lessee™), am qualified to answer the questions set forth below regarding the Equipment to be acquired by Lessee in connection
with the above-referenced Agreement:

l.  What is the specific use of the Equipment?

2. What increased capabilities will the Equipment provide?

3. Why is the Equipment essential to your ability to deliver governmental services?

4. Does the Equipment replace existing equipment?
(If so, please explain why you are replacing the existing equipment)

5. Why did you choose this specific Equipment?

6. For how many years do you expect lo utilize the Equipment?

7. What revenue source will be utilized to make Rental Payments due under the Agreement?

Lessee: By: Print Name;
Title:

Muni_Lease_Master_Schedule v.04.20.2016 309087 9/8/2016 9:03 AM 7



Ytcf

equipment
finance
INSURANCE COVERAGE DISCLOSURE TO

SCHEDULE OF EQUIPMENT NO.
TO MASTER EQUIPMENT LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT NO.

RE: INSURANCE COVERAGE REQUIREMENTS

1 In accordance with the Master Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement, Lessee certifies that it has instructed the
insurance agent named below (please fill in name, address, and telephone number):

Insurance Agent Name: Business Phone #
Company Fax Phone #
Liability:

Insurance Agent Name: Business Phone #
Company Fax Phone #
Property:

to issue: (check to indicate coverage)

X a. AllRisk Physical Damage Insurance on the Equipment evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance and Long Form Loss
Payable Clause naming TCF Equipment Finance, a division of TCF National Bank and/or its assigns as Loss Payee.

Coverage Required: Termination Value Specified.

__X___b. Public Liability Insurance evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance naming TCF Equipment Finance, a division of
TCF National Bank and/or its assigns as an Additional Insured.

Minimum Coverage Required:

$1,000,000  per person
$1,000,000  aggregate bodily injury liability
$1,000,000.  property damage liability.

Proof of insurance coverage will be provided to TCF Equipment Finance, a division of TCF National Bank, 11100 Wayzata
Blvd, Suite 801, Minnetonka, MN 55305, prior to the time that the Equipment is delivered to Lessee. Please fax a copy of the
Certificate of Insutance or binder to Marisa Meyers at (866) 465-3 149.

Lessee: By: Print Name:
Title:

Muni_Lecase Master_Schedule v.04.20.2016 309087 9/8/2016 9:03 AM 8



OPINION OF COUNSEL

(To be on Attorney's Letterhead)

Date: September 8, 2016
Lessee:
Lessor: TCF Equipment Finance, a division of TCF National Bank

11100 Wayzata Blvd, Suite 801
Minnetonka, MN 55305

Re: Schedule of Equipment No. to Master Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement No.
, dated as of , by and between ) and TCF Equipment Finance, a division of TCF
National Bank.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

[ have acted as counsel to Lessee with respect to the Schedule of Equipment No.  to Master Equipment Lease-
Purchase Agreement described above and the related escrow agreement, if any, and all attachments, exhibits and
schedules thereto (together, the “Lease™) and various related matters, and in this capacity have reviewed a duplicate
original or certified copy of the Lease. Based upon the examination of these and such other documents as I deem
relevant, it is my opinion that:

1. Lessee is a public corporation and political subdivision of the State of (the "State") within the
meaning of Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, is duly organized, existing and
operating under the Constitution and laws of the State, and has a substantial amount of the following soverign
powers: (a) the power to tax, (b) the power of eminent domain, and (c) police power. The full, true and correct legal
name of Lessee is

2. Lessee is authorized and has power under State law to enter into the Lease and lease the equipment with an
option to purchase, and to carry out its obligations thereunder and the transactions contemplated thereby. No further
approval, consent or withholding of objection is required from any Federal, State or local governmental authority
with respect to the entering into or performance by the Lessee of the Lease and the transaction contemplated
thereby.

3. The Lease and the other documents described above have been duly authorized, approved, executed and
delivered by and on behalf of Lessee, and the Lease is a valid and binding contract of Lessee enforceable in
accordance with its terms, except to the extent limited by State and Federal laws affecting remedies and by
bankruptcy, reorganization or other laws of general application relating to or affecting the enforcement of creditors'
rights.

4. Lessee has no authority (statutory or otherwise) to terminate the Lease prior to the end of its term for any reason
other than pursuant to the terms of Section 3.05(a) and (b) of the Lease.

5. The authorization, approval and execution of the Lease and all other proceedings of Lessee relating to the
transactions contemplated thereby have been performed in accordance with all open meeting laws, public bidding
laws and all other applicable State and Federal laws.

6. The execution of the Lease and the appropriation of moneys to pay the payments coming due under the Lease

do not result in the violation of any constitutional, statutory or other limitation relating to the manner, form or
amount of indebtedness which may be incurred by Lessee.

Muni_Lease_Master_OpinionOfCounsel v.04.20.2016 309087 9/8/2016 9:11 AM 1



7. There is no litigation, action, suit, or proceeding pending or before any court, administrative agency, arbitrator or
governmental body that challenges the organization or existence of Lessee; the authority of the Lessee or its officers;
the proper authorization, approval and execution of the Lease and the other documents described above; the
appropriation of monies to make Rental Payments under the Lease for the current fiscal year, or the ability of Lessee
otherwise to perform its obligations under the Lease and the transactions contemplated thereby.

8. The equipment leased pursuant to the Lease constitutes personal property and when subject to use by Lessee will
not be or become fixtures under applicable law.

9. The leasing of the equipment pursuant to the Lease is exempt from all sales, use and documentary stamp taxes
against either Lessor or Lessee during the term of the Lease, and such equipment will be exempt from all state and

local personal property or other ad valorem taxes.

This opinion of counsel may be relied upon by TCF Equipment Finance, a division of TCF National Bank and its
successors and assigns.

Very truly yours,

o

Muni_Lease_Master_OpinionOfCounsel v.04.20.2016 309087 9/8/2016 9:11 AM



RESOLUTION
MASTER EQUIPMENT LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT NO.

AND SCHEDULE NO. THERETO
A resolution authorizing the negotiation, execution, and delivery of Master Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement No. dated
and Schedule No. thereto, together with the related escrow agreement, if any (the “Lease™), in principal amount
not to exceed § . between and TCF Equipment Finance, a division of TCF National Bank, 11100 Wayzata

Blvd, Suite 801, Minnetonka, MN 55305; and prescribing other details in connection therewith.

WHEREAS, (the "Lessee") is a political subdivision duly organized and existing pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State
of ; and

WHEREAS, Lessee is duly authorized by applicable law to acquire such items of personal property as are needed to carry out its governmental
functions and to acquire such personal property by entering into lease-purchase agreements; and '

WHEREAS, Lessee hereby finds and determines that the execution of a Lease for the purpose of leasing with the option to purchase the property
designated and set forth in Schedule No. to the Lease is appropriate and necessary to the function and operations of the Lessee;
and

WHEREAS, TCF Equipment Finance, a division of TCF National Bank, (the "Lessor") shall act as Lessor under said Lease; and

WHEREAS, the Lease shall not constitute a general obligation indebtedness of the Lessee within the meaning of the Constitution and laws of the
State;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF

Section 1. The Lease, in substantially the form as presently before the governing body of the Lessee , is hereby approved, and the

of the Lessee, is hereby authorized to negotiate, enter into, execute, and deliver the Lease and related documents in
substantially the form as presently before the governing body of the Lessee, with such changes therein as shall be approved by such officer, and
which Lease will be available for public inspection at the offices of Lessee.

Section 2. The Lessee shall, and the officers, agents and employees of the Lessee are hereby authorized and directed to take such further action
and execute such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this
Resolution, and to carry out, comply with and perform the duties of the Lessee with respect to the Lease.

Section 3. The Lessee’s obligations under the Lease shall be expressly subject to annual appropriation by Lessee; and such obligations under the
Lease shall not constitute a general obligation of Lessee or indebtedness of Lessee within the meaning of the Constitution and laws of the State of
Section 4. All other related contracts and agreements necessary and incidental to the Lease are hereby authorized, ratitied and approved.

Section 5. Lessee reasonably anticipates to issue not more than $10,000,000 of tax-exempt obligations (other than "private activity bonds" which
are not "qualified 501(c)(3) bonds") during the current calendar year and hereby designates the Lease as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” for
purposes of Section 265(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Section 6. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and approval.

CERTIFIED AS TRUE AND CORRECT this day of ,20

Signature of Clerk, Secretary or Assistant Secretary

Printed Name of Clerk, Secretary or Assistant Secretary

Muni_Lease_Master_Resolution_BankQualified v.04.20.2016 309087 9/8/2016 9:14 AM



2018 Budget Timeline
Deliverable
Budgets to Manager
Draft Budget
Budget Update
Budget Update
Financials *
Capital Project Presentations
Capital Project Presentations
Budget Revision
‘Budget Revision
Final Budget
Intro Budget
Salary Ordinance - Intro
Adopt Budget
Salary Ordinance - Adopt
Proposed Capital Ord
Intro Capital Ord
Adopt Capital Ord

20 day estoppel

* Note: Financial Statement not due until Feb 10 so a preliminary will be forwarded at this time.

to FAC

7-Dec-17

5-Jan-18

27-Jan-18

9-Feb-18

2-Mar-18

30-Mar-18

to Council

18-Jan-18

23-Jan-18

24-Feb-18

9-Mar-18

© 23-Mar-18

23-Mar-18

6-Apr-18

20-Apr-18

20-Apr-18

20-Apr-18

Discussion

13-Dec-17
10-Jan-18
22-Jan-18
7-Feb-18
12-Feb-18

26-Jan-18

12-Mar-18
26-Mar-18
26-Mar-18
9-Apr-18
23-Apr-18
23-Apr-18
4-Apr-18
23-Apr-18
14-May-18

3-Jun-18

Other
22-Nov-17




BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR & BOROUGH COUNCIL
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION & ORDINANCE OVERVIEWS — OCTOBER 9, 2017
DATE: OCTOBER 5, 2017

CC: RICHARD SHEOLA — BOROUGH MANAGER
ROBERT OOSTDYK — BOROUGH ATTORNEY

The following Resolutions are on the Agenda for the meeting of October 9, 2017.

R157-17 — Authorization for the award of a contract for the leasing of police vehicles — this
resolution will authorize the Borough to enter into a lease agreement with MMD Financial for
the lease of two Dodge Chargers at an interest rate of 3.98% and a final cost of $107,864 for two
vehicles and associated equipment.

R158-17 — Affirmation of the Borough’s commitment to sustainable land use— this resolution
reaffirms the Borough’s commitment to sustainable land use practices such as promoting
transportation choices, natural resource protection, green design, etc. This resolution is an
amended form of a resolution that was on a prior agenda that was not voted on.

R159-17, Authorizing the filing of a treatment works approval — This resolution authorizes
the submission of an application for a treatment works approval by the developer to the NJDEP
for the development known as the Enclave at Mountain Lakes. The application seeks permission
to connect the development to the public water and sewer system.

There are no Ordinances on the agenda for 10/9/2017

If there are any questions prior to the meeting, please feel free to contact me.



BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES
COUNTY OF MORRIS, NJ

RESOLUTION 156-17

“RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PAYMENT OF BILLS”

WHEREAS, the Borough Manager has reviewed and approved purchase orders requested by the Department
Heads; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Office has certified that funds are available in the proper account; and

WHEREAS, the Borough Treasurer has approved payment, upon certification from the Borough Department
Heads that the goods and/or services have been rendered to the Borough.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Borough Council of the Borough of Mountain Lakes, County of
Morris, State of New Jersey, that the current bills, dated October 9, 2017 and on file and available for public
inspection in the Office of the Treasurer and approved by him for payment, be paid.

NNNNENNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNRNNRNNNNRENNRNERNNNNN

CERTIFICATION: | hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and correct copy of a resolution duly adopted by the
Borough Council of Mountain Lakes, New Jersey, at a meeting held on October 9, 2017.

Valerie A. Egan, Municipal Clerk

Name Motion | Second Aye Nay Absent | Abstain

Barrett

Happer

Horst

Korman

Shepherd

Barnett

Holmberg




Report Printed 2017-10-05 13:26:42

MOUNTAIN LAKES

List of Bills

- CLAIMS/CLEARING CHECKING ACCOUNT

Meeting Date: 10/09/2017  For bills from 09/21/2017 to 10/05/2017

Page 1/3

.Check# Vendor Description Payment Check Total
13362 2465 ABADEL PEST CONTROL CO. PO 17903 DPW - PEST CONTROL 295.00 295.00
13363 196 ALLIED OIL COMPANY, LLC PO 17672 DPW - UNLEADED FUEL - BLANKET 3,375.55 3,375.55
13364 102 ANDERSON & DENZLER ASSOC., INC PO 17066 2017 ENGINEERING SERVICES POLLARD R 401,50

PO 17187 ENGINEERING SVC FOR BIRCHWOOD & ISL 6,301.50

PO 17929 AUGUST 2017 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 7,467.68

PO 17929 AUGUST 2017 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 785.00

PO 17929 AUGUST 2017 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 157.00 15,112,68
13365 102 ANDERSON & DENZLER ASSOC,, INC PO 17929 AUGUST 2017 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2,547.46 2,547.46
13366 427 - CALIFORNIA BEACH HUT PO 17915 2017 LIFEGUARD UNIFORMS 2,990.00 2,990.00
13367 2715 CAPITOL SUPPLY CONSTRUC PROD, INC PO 17705 WATER DEPARTMENT - EQUIPMENT - BLAN 1,704.08 1,704.08
13368 3650 - CARA FOX PO 17961 REGISTRAR'S REIMBURSEMENT 44,18 44.18
13369 3762 CARTRIDGE WORLD PO 17926 PRINTER CARTRIDGES / RICOH 613.89 613.89
13370 3381 CEUNION PO 17659 ANN PURCELL: 2017 CEU CLASSES 89.00 89.00
13371 1481 CORE & MAIN, LP PO 17602 WATER DEPARTMENT - EQUIPMENT REPAIR 391.00 391.00
13372 519 - COUGAR PRESS PO 17893 CLEAN COMMUNITIES - RECYCLING MAILE 357.00 357.00
13373 2147 CCTMO LLC PO 17962 OQCT 2017 - CELL TOWER REIMBURSEMENT 1,725.05 1,725.05
13374 521 CROWNE PLAZA PHILA/CHERRY HILL PO 17950 NJ SHADE TREE CONVENTION 2017 257.34 257.34
13375 3503 CWC CONTINUING ED PO 17673 WATER DEPARTMENT - TRAINING & EDUCA 475.00 475.00
13376 653 GANNET NEW JERSEY NEWSPAPERS PO 17917 ACCT#31470 - LEASE OF SATION 190.96 190.96
13377 3884 DECOTIIS, FITZPATRICK, COLE & GIBLI PO 17918 LABOR ATTORNEY - PROFESSIONAL SERVI 262.50 262.50
13378 2985 EAST COAST TREE EXPERTS, LLC PO 17830 DPW - TREE REMOVAL 2,750.00 2,750.00
13379 3715 - FED EX PO 17815 ACCT# 2047-4057-7 96.60 96.60
13380 876 GARDEN STATE LABORATORIES, INC PO 16774 WATER DEPARTMENT - WATER TESTING- B 3,454.00 3,454.00
13381 3209 HAWKINS DELAFIELD & WOOD LLP PO 17953 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR BOND ISSU 21,533.17 21,533.17
13382 3639 IWORQ SYSTEMS, INC. PO 17802 INTERNET FLEET MANAGEMENT APPLICATI 1,276.66

PO 17802 INTERNET FLEET MANAGEMENT APPLICATI 1,276.67

PO 17802 INTERNET FLEET MANAGEMENT APPLICATI 1,276.67 3,830.00
13383 859 JCPE&L PO 17930 MASTER ACCT# 200 000 020 764: BILL 483.67

PO 17959 ACCT# 100 075 505 725 - BILLING PRD 3.32

PO 17958 MAST ACCT# 200 000 054 011/ BILL DA 5.90

PO 17957 MASTER ACCT# 200 000 569 000 / BILL 3,175.50 3,668.39
13384 1040 - JESCO, INC. PO 17904 WATER DEPARTMENT - VEHICLE REPAIR 643.76 643.76
13385 1062 JOHNNY ON THE SPOT, LLC PO 17934 SEPT/OCT 2017 - CUST ID# 014738 - P 95.20 95.20
13386 1074 JW PIERSON CO. PO 16727 DPW - DIESEL FUEL - BLANKET 1,010.80 1,010.80
13387 1090 KENVIL POWER MOWER PO 16735 STREET & ROADS - BLANKET 93.50 93.50
13388 1438 MAIN POOL & CHEMICAL COMPANY PO 17906 WATER DEPARTMENT - TREATMENT OF WEL 661.96 661.96
13389 3648 - MONMOUTH TELECOM PO 17963 OCT 2017 TELEPHONE SERVICES / ACCT# 1,469.90 1,469.90
13390 2534 MORRIS COUNTY OVERHEAD DOOR COMPANY PO 17754 FIRE DEPT: BAY WINDO 410.00 410.00
13391 2534 MORRIS COUNTY OVERHEAD DOOR COMPANY PC 17900 DPW - BUILDING MAINTENANCE 432.10 432,10
13392 1309 MORRIS CTY TAX COLL/TREAS ASSN PO 17922 ANN PURCELL: NOVEMBER 26, 2017 CLAS 20.00 20.00
13393 3099 MTN LAKES MEDICAL CENTER, LLC PO 17836 PHYSICALS- JUNIOR FIREFIGHTERS B 770.00 770.00
13394 1371 MIN. LAKES BOARD OF EDUCATION PO 17931 PAYMENT 2- 2017 POSTAGE METER 3,254.34 3,254.34
13395 1371 MIN. LAKES BOARD OF EDUCATION PO 17964 OCT 2017 MTN LAKES SCHOOL DISTRICT 1,693,374.08 1,693,374.08
13396 881 NCX PO 16811 2017 DNS HOSTING FOR ACCT: GTI 19.95 19.95
13397 1522 NISIVOCCIA & COMPANY LLP PO 17913 CLIENT# 00067R001 - DEBT STATEMENTS 1,400.00 1,400.00
13398 1563 - NJ SHADE TREE FEDERATION PO 17951 NJ SHADE TREE CONFERENCE 2017 245.00 245.00
13399 1562 NJLM PO 17870 AD PLACEMENT: BOROUGH MANAGER 160.00 160.00
13400 2595 NORTH JERSEY MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEE PO 17933 OCTOBER 2017 DENTAL PREMIUMS - GROU 3,044.00 3,044.00
13401 3236 ONE SOURCE OF NEW JERSEY, LLC PO 17388 DPW - EQUIPMENT & TOOLS - BLANKET 211.50 211.50
13402 2968 - OPTIMUM (DPW) PO 17357 DPW INTERNET SERVICES ACCT# 07876-6 100.58 100.58
13403 2968 - OPTIMUM (DPW) PO 17358 DPW: ACCT# 07876-414565-01-0 - BLAN 10,70 10.70
13404 3173 - OPTIMUM PO 17366 FIRE: ACCT# 07876-603439-01-8 CABLE 70.65 70.65
13405 479 PARKER PUBLICATIONS PO 17808 ACCT# 010902 / PLANNING BOARD/ ZBOA 28.20

PO 17937 ACCT# 010902 / PLANNING BOARD/ ZBOA 10.81 39.01
13406 2397 ROCKAWAY AUTO RESQURCES, LLC PO 17762 POLICE DEPARTMENTS - VEHICLE REPAIR 37.26

PO 17780 FIRE DEPT: MISC. ENGINE REPAIRS - B 24.50 61.76
13407 1878 - SENECA TREE SERVICE, INC, PO 17905 DPW - TREE REMOVAL 200.00 200.00
13408 285 - SHAWN BENNETT PO 17921 Reimbursement for Training Supplies 1,625.08

PO 17908 Reimbursement for The Academy Membe 250.00 1,875.08
13409 1948 SHEAFFER SUPPLY, INC. PO 16781 DPW & WATER - BLANKET FOR 1ST QTR 2 46,60

PO 16781 DPW & WATER - BLANKET FOR 1ST QTR 2 13.98 60.58
13410 114 SOLITUDE LAKE MANAGEMENT PO 17832 2017 LAKE MANAGEMENT - BLANKET - CU 4,185.00 4,185.00
13411 3017 STATE OF NJ - PWT DIVISION OF TAXAT PO 17966 302017 WATER TAX PAYMENT 450,54 450.54
13412 1981 SUBURBAN DISPOSAL, INC PO 17892 DPW - SOLID WASTE COLLECTION - AUGU 24,333.33 24,333.33



Page 2/3

Report Printed 2017-10-05 13:26:42 MOUNTAIN LAKES

List of Bills
Meeting Date: 10/09/2017

- CLAIMS/CLEARING CHECKING ACCOUNT
For bills from 09/21/2017 to 10/05/2017

Check# Vendor Description Payment Check Total
13413 189 - TRUE VALUE HARDWARE PO 17494 DPW - STREETS & ROADS - BLANKET 139.91 139.91
13414 2093 - UNION FIRE EQUIPMENT CORP. PO 17925 FIRE DEPT: QUOTE FOR CAIRNS HELMETS 344.00 344,00
13415 3752 - VALERIE A, EGAN PO 17960 REGISTRAR'S MTG REIMBURSEMENT 44,18 44,18
13416 832 - W.W. GRAINGER, INC PO 17827 DPW - DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 446.00 446.00

TOTAL

Summary By Account

ACCOUNT

01-201~20-100-020
01-201-20-120-020
01-201-20-130-020
01-201-20-140-020
01-201-20-145-020

01-201-20-155-020

01-201-20-165-020
01-201-21-180-020
01-201-21-185-020
01-201-23-220-020
01-201-25-240-020
01-201-25-255-020
01-201-26-290-020
01-201-26-300-020
01-201-26-305-020
01-201-26-310-020
01-201-26-315-020
01-201-28-370-020
01-201-28-375-020
01-201-31-435-020
01-201-31-436-020
01-201-31-440-020
01-201-31-447-020
01-207-55-000-000
01-260-05-100

01-290-55-000-005

DESCRIPTION

GENERAL ADMIN - OTHER EXPENSE
MUNICIPAL CLERK - OTHER EXP'S
FINANCE - OTHER EXPENSES
COMPUTER SERVICES

TAX COLLECTOR - OTHER EXPENSES
LEGAL SERVICES - OTHER EXPENSE
ENGINEERING SERVICES

PLANNING BOARD - OTHER EXPENSE
BD OF ADJUST - OTHER EXPENSES
GROUP INSURANCE PLANS-EMPLOYEE
POLICE DEPT - OTHER EXPENSES
FIRE DEPT - OTHER EXPENSES
STREETS & ROADS - OTHER EXP.
SHADE TREE COMMISSION - O/E
SOLID WASTE - OTHER EXPENSES
BLDG & GROUNDS - MUNIC BLDG
VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
PARKS & PLAYGROUNDS OTHER EXP.
MAINT OF PARKS (BEACHES/LAKES)
ELECTRICITY - ALL DEPARTMENTS
ELECTRICITY - STREET LIGHTING
TELECOMMUNICATIONS

PETROLEUM PRODUCTS

LOCAL SCHOOL TAXES PAYABLE

DUE TO CLEARING

DUE TO T-MOBILE - SPRINT FEES

TOTALS FOR

02-200-40-700-340
02-260-05-100

TOTALS FOR

04-215-55-978-000
04-215-55-980-000
04-215-55-982-000
04-215-55-983-000
04-260-05-100

TOTALS FOR

05-201-55-520-520
05-260-05-100

Current Fund

Clean Communities Grant
DUE TO CLEARING

FEDERAL AND STATE GRANTS

2014 CAPITAL PROGRAM

2015 CAPITAL ORDINANCE 07-15
2016 CAPITAL ORDINANCE 06-16
2017 CAPITAL ORDINANCE 05-17
DUE TO CLEARING

General Capital

Water Operating - Other Expenses

DUE TO CLEARING

2

1,805,440.26

CURRENT YR APPROP. YEAR NON-BUDGETARY CREDIT
3,733.83
427.88
231.00
1,307.31
109.00
262.50
7,467.68
31.18
19.27
3,044.00
1,875.08
1,209.15
1,871.69
3,252.34
24,333.33
410.00
37.26
2,990.00
4,280.20
492.89
3,175.50
1,469.90
4,386.35 _
1,693,374.08
0.00  1,761,516.47
1,725.05
66,417.34 0.00 1,695,099.13  1,761,516.47
357.00
0.00 357.00
0.00 0.00 357.00 357.00
2,189.68
20,298. 69
9,293.76
401.50
0.00 32,183.63
0.00 0.00 32,183.63 32,183.63
9,949.49
0.00 9,949.49
9,949.49 0.00 0.00 9,949.49

TOTALS FOR

Water Operating




Summary By Account

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

07-201-55-520-520
07-260-05-100 DUE TO CLEARING

TOTALS FOR Sewer Operating

Total to be paid from Fund 01 Current Fund

Page 3/3

CURRENT YR  APPROP. YEAR NON-BUDGETARY

Sewer Operating - Other Expenses 1,433.67

1,433.67

1,761,516.47

Total to be paid from Fund 02 FEDERAL AND STATE GRANTS 357.00

Total to be paid from Fund 04 General Capital
Total to be paid from Fund 05 Water Operating
Total to be paid from Fund 07 Sewer Operating

Checks Previously Disbursed

32,183.63
9,949.49

1,805,440.26

13361 SHERATON ATLANTIC CITY

Total paid from Fund 01 Current Fund

Total for this Bills List: 1,806,008.26

PO# 17919 CLERK: 2017 NJSLOM // RESERV. CONF

568.00 10/03/2017



Report Printed 2017-10-05 11:56:00

Page 1/1
MOUNTAIN LAKES

List of Bills -(1710101001002) Escrow - Developers - Checking

Developer's Escrow
Meeting Date: 10/09/2017  For bills from 09/21/2017 to 10/05/2017

Check# Vendor Description Payment Check Total
5070 102 - ANDERSON & DENZLER ASSOC., INC PO 17928 AUGUST 2017 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES = 715.50 715.50
5071 3715 - FED EX PO 17878 PLANNING: ACCT# 2047-4057-7 59.68 59.68
5072 3855 - RINGO SUPPLY COMPANY PO 17573 ESCROW REFUND 282.19 282.19

TOTAL 1,057.37

Summary By Account

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION ) CURRENT YR APPROP. YEAR NON-BUDGETARY CREDIT

17-101-01-001-002 Escrow - Developers - Checking 0.00 1,057.37

17-500-00-091-302 RINGO SUPPLY COMPANY 282.19

17-500-00-091-304 KING MOUNTAIN LAKES LLC 775.18

TOTALS FOR Developer's Escrow 0.00 0.00 1,057.37 1,057.37

Total to be paid from Fund 17 Developer'é Escrow 1;057.37

1,057.37



Page 1/1
Report Printed 20717-10-05 11:53:53 MOUNTAIN LAKES

List of Bills -(3310101001001) PROVIDENT BANK

Recreation Trust
Meeting Date: 10/09/2017  For bills from 09/21/2017 to 10/05/2017

Check# Vendor Description Payment Check Total
5102 3874 - BISHOPS ICE CREAM, LLC PO 17854 SUMMER REC CAMP: 345.00 345.00
5103 3883 - HOLLY DANIEL PO 17887 SAILING GROUP: REIMBURSEMENT 17321 173.21
5104 3853 - STINSON STREET INVESTORS, LLC PO 17914 MTN. LAKES SAILING CLUB: 940,00 940.00

TOTAL 1,458.21

Summary By Account

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION CURRENT YR . APPROP. YEAR NON-BUDGETARY CREDIT

33-101-01-001-001 PROVIDENT BANK 0.00 1,458.21

33-600-00-090-130 SUMMER RECREATION 345.00

33-600-00-090-141 RESERVE FOR MTN LAKES SAILING GROUP 1,113.21

TOTALS FOR Recreation Trust 0.00 0.00 1,458.21 1,458.21
Total to be paid from Fund 33 Recreation Trust 1,458.21

1,458.21



Resolution 157-17

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE LEASE/PURCHASE OF TWO POLICE VEHICLES AND RELATED
COMPONENTS FOR THE POLICE DEPARTMENT

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Borough to lease/purchase two (2) patrol cars for the Police
Department; and

WHEREAS, the has bid the vehicles on two (2) occasions and on August 28, 2017 authorized the Borough
Manager to negotiate a lease price; and

WHEREAS, the Borough Manager has negotiated a four (4) year lease purchase for two (2) Dodge
Charger All Wheel Drive Police Patrol vehicles through MMD Financial at an interest rate of 3.98% with a
one dollar (51.00) purchase at the end of the term; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Borough Manager be authorized to enter into a contract
with MMD Financial Services in the amount of $26,966 /year for a total of $107,864 for the lease
purchase of two (2) police patrol vehicles with associated equipment.

RNNNNNNNKNERNNNNNNNNENNNNNNNRRENNNNNNNRRNRRNN

CERTIFICATION: | hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and correct copy of a resolution duly
adopted by the Borough Council of Mountain Lakes, New Jersey, at a meeting held on October 9, 2017.

Valerie A. Egan, Municipal Clerk

Name Motion | Second Aye Nay Absent | Abstain

Barrett

Happer

Horst

Korman

Shepherd

Barnett

Holmberg




BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES
COUNTY OF MORRIS, NJ

RESOLUTION 158-17

RESOLUTION REAFFIRMING THE BOROUGH'S
COMMITMENT TO SUSTAINABLE LAND USE

WHEREAS, sustainability has been a consistent element of land use policy in the Borough of
Mountain Lakes; and

WHEREAS, the Borough has recognized that land use decisions must be based on multiple
factors including sustainability; and

WHEREAS, these factors include the creation of transportation choices, housing options,
walkable communities, the preservation of open space, the provision of adequate recreation, and the
continued protection and use of vital natural resources; and

WHEREAS, sustainable land use is consistent with several objectives set forth in the Master Plan
including:

1. The retention of the traditional character of Mountain Lakes.

2 Protecting and enhancing the Borough’s environmental resources.

3 Providing for appropriate development of the Boroﬁgh.

4, Providing for safe and convenient pedestrian and vehicular circulation and access.

5 Maintenance of the Borough's traditional commitment to education and recreation.

;and

WHEREAS, sustainability is also recognized as an appropriate land use consideration by the State
of New Jersey in housing initiatives such as Smart Growth and the provision of affordable housing; and

WHEREAS, a statewide sustainable land use policy will require municipalities which are
committed to sustainability, such as Mountain Lakes, to take the lead given New lJersey's strong
tradition of home rule and local authority over planning and zoning.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Borough Council of the Borough of Mountain Lakes,
County of Morris, that the Borough hereby reaffirms its commitment to sustainable land use within the
community and resolves to continue to consider the principles set for below in formulating municipal
land-use decisions with the intent of making Mountain Lakes a more sustainable community. The
Borough Council encourages all Borough Boards and Committees to consider these principles when
making decisions, including the next master plan revision and reexamination report, and pledges to
consider these principles when developing land-use, zoning, natural resource protection, and other
ordinances.

Regional Cooperation - We pledge to continue to reach out to administrations of our neighboring
municipalities concerning land-use decisions, and to take into consideration regional impacts when
making land-use decisions. (Master Plan - Element XI)

Transportation Choices - We pledge to promote transportation choices with interconnectivity by
considering all modes of transportation, including walking, biking, transit and automobiles, when
planning transportation projects and reviewing development applications. We will reevaluate our



parking lots with the goal of increasing permeability and promoting multi-use options. (Master Plan —
Element XIl and Element V)

Natural Resource Protection - We pledge to take action to protect the natural resources of the State for
environmental, recreational and agricultural value, avoiding or mitigating negative impacts to these
resources. Further, we pledge to update our Natural Resources Inventory and community forestry
management plan, when feasible, to identify and assess the extent of our natural resources (Master
Plan — Element V1) and to link natural resource management and protection to future development
(Master Plan — Element Xl p1-2), land-use and open space planning (Master Plan — Appendix A).

Mix of Land Uses - We pledge to use our regional planning and zoning powers to allow for a mix of
residential, retail, commercial, recreational and other land use types in areas that make the most sense
for our municipality and the region. (Master Plan — Element XlI p2 & Element Ill) (Housing Element and
Fair Share Plan)

Housing Options - We pledge, through the use of our regional planning, zoning and revenue generating
powers, to foster a appropriate mix of housing types and locations, to meet the needs of all people at a
range of age and income levels in appropriate areas of the Borough. (Master Plan — Element Ill)

Green Design - We pledge to incorporate the principles of green design and renewable energy
generation into municipal buildings to the extent feasible and when updating our site plan and
subdivision requirements for residential and commercial buildings. (Sustainable Jersey Resolutions &
Practice)

Municipal Facilities Siting - We pledge, to the extent feasible, to take into consideration factors such as
walkability, bikability, greater access to public transit, proximity to other land-use types, and open space
when locating new or relocated municipal facilities. (Master Plan — Element V p4)

NNNNNNENNNNNNNNNNRENNNENENNNNNNNRNRRENNNNRNN

CERTIFICATION: | hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and correct copy of a resolution duly
adopted by the Borough Council of Mountain Lakes, New Jersey, at a meeting held on October 9, 2017.

Valerie A. Egan, Municipal Clerk

Name Motion | Second Aye Nay Absent | Abstain

Barrett

Happer

Horst

Korman

Shepherd

Barnett

Holmberg




BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES
RESOLUTION 159-17

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION FOR A MODIFICATION TO
TREATMENT WORKS APPROVAL WITH THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (KINGS MT. LAKES, LLC/BLOCK 3.01, LOT 116, 145 ROUTE
46)

WHEREAS, there is a need to apply for a modification to the Treatment Works Approval from the State of
New lJersey Department of Environmental Protection Division of Water Quality in connection with the
development of “The Enclave at Mountain Lakes” — Kings Mt. Lakes, L.L.C. (Block 3.01, Lot 116 as shown on
the Tax Map of the Borough of Mountain Lakes); and

WHEREAS, the Borough of Mountain Lakes is required to consent to the filing of an application for
modification of the Treatment Works Approval Permit Application.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Borough Council of the Borough of Mountain Lakes, in the
County of Morris and State of New Jersey, that the appropriate municipal officials are hereby authorized to
execute the Consent by the Governing Body for the application for modification of the Treatment Works
Approval Permit for “The Enclave at Mountain Lakes” — Kings Mt. Lakes, L.L.C. (Block 88, Lots 18.01-18.44)
in the Borough of Mountain Lakes.

NNNNRENNNNNNNENNKENNRNRRENNRNNNNRNNRNNRNNRNNRN

CERTIFICATION: | hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and correct copy of a resolution duly adopted by
the Borough Council of Mountain Lakes, New Jersey, at a meeting held on October 9, 2017.

Valerie A. Egan, Municipal Clerk

Name Motion | Second Aye Nay Absent | Abstain

Barrett

Happer

Horst

Korman

Shepherd

Barnett

Holmberg




MEETING MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL OF THE BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES
SEPTEMBER 25, 2017
HELD AT BOROUGH HALL, 400 BOULEVARD, MOUNTAIN LAKES, NJ 07046

CALL TO ORDER AND OPEN PUBLIC MEETINGS ACT STATEMENT ‘
This meeting is being held in compliance with Public Law 1975, Chapter 231, Sections 4 and 13, as notice of this meeting
and the agenda thereof had been reported to The Citizen and the Morris County Daily Record and The Star Ledger on
January 5, 2017 and posted in the municipal building.

Mayor Holmberg called the meeting to order at 8:00 p.m. in the municipal building.

ROLL CALL ATTENDANCE

Roll Call Present Absent Present Absent
Barrett = ] Shepherd X ]
Happer X ] Barnett X ]
Horst X ] Holmberg X ]
Korman > O]

FLAG

Mayor Holmberg led the salute to the flag.

COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS

Mayor Holmberg stated that the Fire Dept. will be holding their annual dinner on October 28" at Zeris Inn. The public is
invited. Mayor Holmberg stated that the municipality will be holding another building open house tour this Sunday. He
stated that Mr. Sheola will be ending his tenure at Mountain Lakes. He thanked Mr. Sheola for his service to the Borough.
Ms. Horst stated that the Board of Education will be holding a special election tomorrow from 7am to 8pm. '

BOROUGH COUNCIL DISCUSSION ITEMS

Emerald Ash Borer

Marnie Vyff and Consuelo Murtagh came before the Council to discuss the Emerald Ash Borer. Ms. Murtagh spoke about
having an Emerald Ash Borer Task Force. She stated that there are 78 Ash trees in the right of way in the Borough.
There are no tree counts in the wooded areas. She spoke of the options regarding the Ash trees. The Shade Tree as a
commission has recommended that pesticides not be used to combat the Emerald Ash Borer. Tree removal and tree
replacement has been recommended. The idea of harvesting was presented. It might be possible to have a company
harvest the Ash trees. She stated that community education and outreach is important. She stated that she would like to
see the DPW have training regarding the Emerald Ash Borer.

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS

Borough Hall/Public Safety Facility Renovation Update

Mr. Sheola made a presentation regarding an update to the of Borough Hall facilities renovation discussion. He discussed
the amount of employees that use the building and the departments that use the building. There are storage issues in all
departments. There are building mechanical issues. There are major deficiencies in the Police Department. There is
only one entrance into the police department for both prisoners and the public. There is only one restroom. The locker
facilities are lacking. The fire department has no decontamination area. No shower or eye wash area. The parking for
members is limited. He explained that the work spaces in the administration offices have no privacy. There is no
conference room. There is a need for a server room. This topic has been discussed several times over the years. Mr.
Jeff Berei architect on the committee spoke about the square footage needed for operations. The current building is 7500
net square feet. The calculated space needed for all uses is 12,000 net square feet. He discussed options. One is
building @ new municipal building. A second is renovating and expanding the existing building. The last option was
renovating only the first floor of the building and moving the police department or the fire department out of the building.
Mr. Tom Menard discussed the costs of the options. Option #1 is 4.8 to 5.8 million. Option # 2 is 3.6 to 4.1 million. Option
#3 would be 2.2 to 2.7 million.

Mayor Holmberg opened the meeting to the public.



MEETING MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL OF THE BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES
SEPTEMBER 25, 2017
HELD AT BOROUGH HALL, 400 BOULEVARD, MOUNTAIN LAKES, NJ 07046

Mr. Fred Kanter, 81 Morris Avenue, stated that he sat in on the previous facilities committee. He stated that the Council at
that time authorized $25,000 for architectural work. He stated that the work was for a new building. Those plans are now
useless. He asked how the municipality has suffered by having an inadequate building. He stated that the police and fire
departments need to be in compliance.

Marnie Vyff, 10 Vale Drive, Chair of the Green Team, asked if the committee has looked into green building practices.
She stated that different architects do different types of work. So if the council decides it will renovate or build green we
need to hire an architect that does that type of work.

Mr. Steven Castellucci, Fire chief and resident, thanked the committee. He thanked the Council for looking at this project.
He stated that to Mr. Kanter's question, what the municipality has suffered is being out of compliance with safety
standards. He encouraged people to take the building tour this Sunday.

Mr. Joe Mullaney, Code Enforcement and former police officer, stated that the building conditions effect the moral of the
employees. There was a discussion regarding when to draft a Request for Proposals. It was discussed that the RFP
could be drafted and reviewed at the next Borough Hall Facilities committee meeting and then moved forward to Council.

PUBLIC COMMENT
Mayor Holmberg opened the meeting to the public

Tom Menard, 15 Bellvale Road, asked if the municipality can go back to the bidders to complete the value engineering.

Mr. Fred Kanter, 81 Hanover Road, stated that at a minimum, the Borough needs to be in compliance with all the federal
and state regulations for the police and fire departments. He stated that during the last go around to renovate the
building, there were too many wants instead of needs. That is why the renovations were not done. He suggested that a
shared service for decontamination station could be achieved.

Linda Heisen, 2 Littlewood Court, thanked all the committees for their work. She mentioned the cost for the dam and for
the school referendum. She asked how the projects are funded.

Jake DeNoover, 79, Lake Drive stated that if we took the Board of Education offices out of the building and gave the police
and fire departments the bottom floor we could probably get the project done for under $2,000,000.

Nick Copola, 10 Woodland Ave., stated having taken the tour, the police department is horrible. He stated that if he was
going to spend money, it should be for the police department first. Prioritizing is important.

ATTORNEY’S REPORT
Mr. Oostdyk recommended removing resolutions 150-17 and 151-17 from the Consent Agenda. Both deal with the lease
of the Station property.

MANAGER’S REPORT

Beach Project Update :

Mr. Sheola updated those present on the committees discussion regarding the beach project. The consensus of the
committee is to move the project forward. There was a discussion regarding doing some of the work in house to save
money. It was the consensus of the Council that the budget for this project should not be raised.

Mr. Sheola reviewed the rest of his report. He stated that King of Kings was approved by the Planning Board.

ORDINANCES
None

*CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

Matters listed as Consent Agenda Items are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion of the Council and one
roll call vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council member requests an item be removed
for consideration.

*RESOLUTIONS
R149-17, Authorization for the payment of bills



MEETING MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL OF THE BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES
SEPTEMBER 25, 2017
HELD AT BOROUGH HALL, 400 BOULEVARD, MOUNTAIN LAKES, NJ 07046

R150-17, Authorization for the return of the security deposit for the Station at Mountain Lakes lease (removed from
consent)

R151-17, Authorizing the new lease of Municipal property, (The Station) (removed from consent)

R152-17, Authorization for a refund of the overpayment of taxes

R153-17, Authorization for a refund of the overpayment of taxes

R154-17, Authorization for a refund of the overpayment of taxes

*APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Regular minutes of September 11, 2017 (Barrett not eligible)
Executive

1) APPROVAL OF REPORTS FOR FILING (reports are included only if checked)
(X Construction Department
[X] Department of Public Works
Finance
X Fire Department
X Health Department
Police Department
X] Recreation Department
IX] Property maintenance report

*BOARD AND COMMITTEE AND COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS

None

Approval of the Consent Agenda

(Resolutions 150-17 and 151-17 were removed from the agenda and are not part of this approval)
Councilmember M  2nd 'Yes No Abstain Absent

Barrett |Z] D |Z [:\ \:| D
Happer O 0 X O 0. 0O
Horst D I:] < D D : D
Korman D [E X |:| D D
Shepherd M O K9k ", O
Barnett D D |__—_| D D
Holmberg il B Dl O "

COUNCIL REPORTS

Mr. Happer stated that Historic Preservation met. They will be holding an open house at the Library. They are talking
about preserving some of the town’s historic landmarks. Mr. Shepherd stated that the Lakes Committee will be holding a
meeting at Birchwood Lake on Tuesday October 3" Ms. Horst stated that the Library board met. The library will be
installing a bike rack at their own cost.

PUBLIC COMMENT _
Please state your name and address for the record. Each speaker is limited to one (1) comment of no more than five
(5) minutes and no yielding of time to another person.

Mayor Holmberg opened the meeting to the public.

Mr. Fred Kanter, 81 Hanover Road, stated that he is seeing very little change in the way Council operates. He suggested
that the new members review their campaign literature. He complained that people are making interruptions during the
meeting and when he is speaking. He stated that the Mayor is responsible for keeping decorum during the meeting. He

3



MEETING MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL OF THE BOROUGH OF MOUNTAIN LAKES
SEPTEMBER 25, 2017
HELD AT BOROUGH HALL, 400 BOULEVARD, MOUNTAIN LAKES, NJ 07046

mentioned asking questions of the Council at a prior meeting. He stated that his questions were not answered. He stated
that the questions were in regards to the parking ordinance and the treatment of African Americans in Mountain Lakes.
He stated that a proclamation was signed by the Mayor regarding the treatment of minorities. He stated that he had given
the Council examples of the mistreatment of minorities in Mountain Lakes and was told to discuss this matter with the
Manager.

Mayor Holmberg responded to Mr. Kanter's comments. He stated that he will assure that there is decorum extended to
Mr. Kanter and all residents. He stated that there is no tolerance for the mistreatment of anyone regardless of their color,
creed or religion. He stated that we take this extremely seriously. He stated that he said that a month ago and he is
saying it again now. He stated that the incident that Mr. Kanter made Council aware of was looked into and the person he
mentioned was reached out to. They revisited the training that goes on regarding this matter with all employees
especially with the Police Department, and he assured that this training does goes on to assure that everyone is treated
equally. He stated that he thought it was important that the Manager and the Chief of Police work with the individual that
Mr. Kanter mentioned. It is now up to that individual to work with our Manager and Chief of Police. Mr. Shepherd stated
that there were several efforts made to reach out to that individual. Ms. Korman stated that she reached out to a family
who she had mentioned at a prior meeting who lived in Mountain Lakes to see if they ever experienced racial profiling and
she was told that neither they or their extended family or friends ever experienced any racial profiling in Mountain Lakes.

NEXT STEPS AND PRIORITIES
Mayor Holmberg reviewed the following next steps and priorities:

Next step Completed by Completion date

Draft new Request For Propsals for Borough Hall Facilities Committee TBD
beach project architect and then bring
it to Council for review and approval

Review the Station lease and Mr. Sheola, Mr. Oostdyk TBD
resolutions 150-17 and 151-17 and put
them on a future agenda

ADJOURNMENT at 10:49 P.M.
Motion made by Councilmember Barrett, second by Councilmember Happer to adjourn the meeting at 10:49 p.m., with all
members in favor signifying by “"Aye’.

Respectfully Submitted

Valerie A Egan Borough Clerk



ook L A

Elizabeth (Betsy) Myatt is the Executive Director of the Northeast Division of the
Insurance Industry Charitable Foundation (IICF), a nonprofit organization that unites the
collective strength of the insurance industry to give back to our communities through
grants, volunteer service, and leadership.

Under her leadership, the IICF Northeast Division has expanded from the New York tri-
state to New England with a Boston Chapter and into Pennsylvania with a Philadelphia
Chapter. Betsy has had primary responsibility for the [ICF Women in Insurance
Conference Series which has attracted over 3,600 people in its first four years.

Prior to joining IICF, Betsy had been a C-level executive in both for-profit companies
and nonprofit organizations. Betsy’s non-profit background includes her role as CEO of
the World Lung Foundation. She previously served, simultaneously, as Vice-President of
Patient and Professional Services and Chief Technology Officer at the national
headquarters of the Crohn’s & Colitis Foundation of America (CCFA) in New York.

Her for-profit background includes Chief Technology Officer and Chief Operating
Officer roles in financial services, manufacturing, and software companies, as well as
management consulting in the insurance industry.

After graduating from Vanderbilt University, Betsy started her professional life as an
English teacher in an underserved community and has been a lifelong advocate for
education. She has consistently served as a volunteer in the communities where she has
lived. Currently, she lives in Mountain Lakes, New Jersey where she serves on the board
of a local non-profit and is a trustee of the endowment of her church.



Robert Aiello

President at 12Volt Distributors

Sumimary

N/A

Experience
Territory Manager at Restronics Metro

March 2015 - Present

President
January 2007 - Present

Sales Counselor at PC Richard & Son
2009 - 2011 (3 years)

Director of Sales and Marketing
January 2004 - December 2008 (5 vears)

Sales/Designer at Electronics World
2008 - 2008 (| year)

Director of Sales at GRT-Mars
May 1998 - December 2002 (4 ycars & months)

Product Manager
1994 - 1998 (5 years)

sales engineer
1994 - 1995 (2 ycars)

Product Manager
1991 - 1993 (3 years)

Education

University of Bridgeport
MBA, Marketing, 1990 - 1992
University of Bridgeport
BSEE, Electrical Engineering, 1983 - 1988
west essex

Page 1



Robert Aiello

President at 12Volt Distributors

Linked 1

Contact Robert on LinkedIn

Page 2




